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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

Results and dividends

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the
year is HK$51,965,000 (2009: loss of HK$71,529,000) and the
directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2009:
Nil).

Business review and management
discussion and analysis
During the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group
recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$153,362,000
(2009: HK$191,559,000) and a profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$51,965,000 (2009: loss of
HK$71,529,000). Benefited from the market rebound during
the year, the Group recorded fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment
properties amounting to approximately HK$21,467,000 and
HK$22,504,000 respectively (2009: loss of HK$14,765,000
and HK$11,335,000 respectively). The directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the year
ended 31st March 2010 (2009: Nil).

The Group operates in four major business segments,
television operations, film exhibition and film rights licensing
and sub-licensing, sale and distribution of films and programs

in audio visual product format and property investment.
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The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment has increased to the level of approximately
HK$104,130,000 (2009: HK$84,487,000), representing
approximately 68% (2009: 44%) of the Group’s turnover.
Since the launch of its first channel in 2001, which broadcasts
movies from the Group’s film library and other programs
from its business partners, the Group has continuously
explored opportunities to broaden the revenue streams of
its television operations. As at 31st March 2010, the Group
provided three channels to now TV in Hong Kong. In July
2007 and October 2008, the Group launched a movie channel
and a drama channel respectively through the network of
SingTel in Singapore. The full year effect of Singapore drama
channel contributed the increase in segmental revenue during
the year. These channels contributed steady and secured

contributions to the Group.

In September 2008, the Group penetrated into the market of
Japan through the acquisition of a channel supply company in
Japan which broadcast through the platform of Sky PerfecTV
in Japan. In October 2009, that channel became one of the
basic package channels of Sky PerfecTV and since then has
exposed to its wide subscriber population. The Group will
continue to explore opportunities to co-operate with other

cable TV and internet TV operators in Japan.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HBO to provide contents of films and drama through the
launch of “Red Channel” in different territories by stages.
This co-operation has enhanced the Group’s exposure to the
global entertainment market and also helped the Group to

establish its channel brandname.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to develop and
launch more channels with increasing varieties to different
regions and explore to secure advertising income from

available air-time in those TV channels.

The Group will continue to strengthen its film library through
acquisition, own production and co-production. Equipped by
the Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience
and network in program sourcing, the Group is confident
that it will continue to provide high quality and customised
TV programs to its audiences. The Group also believes that
its television segment has huge potential of growth and will
continue to bring significant and increasing contribution to
the Group’s results. Following the increasing popularity of pay
TV in Hong Kong and digitalisation of TV signal in Hong Kong
and China which allows more broadcasting channels than the
analogue system, the demand for TV contents is expected
to increase significantly and the Group believes that it will
receive encouraging results and fruitful rewards from these

new market opportunities.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s segment of
film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-licensing
decreased from HK$62,839,000 to HK$10,845,000 which
is mainly attributable to the release of “Red Cliff” which
contributed significant theatrical release revenue to the
Group last year. Since 2007, the Group has been appointed
as the exclusive distribution agent to market and license films
produced by BIG Pictures Limited (“BIG”), a film production
house, and also to support its content requirement in respect
of the Group’s television, licensing and distribution operations
by acquiring those relevant film rights, and favour from the
synergy in respect of the collaboration of BIG’s film library
and the Group’s distribution network. The Group will also
continue to support Hong Kong’s film industry by looking for

opportunities to invest in high quality and popular films.
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The revenues attributable to sale and distribution of films
and programs in audio visual product format decreased
from HK$44,233,000 to HK$38,387,000, which is mainly
attributable to the overall industrial climate and less new
titles were released during the year. Since April 2008, the
Group has widened its network and source of audio visual
products distribution by distributing titles for an international
entertainment and media company. The Group will continue
to acquire customized and popular films and diversify its

distribution channels in order to maintain its competitiveness.

During the year, the Group acquired an office premise
in Beijing, China and a storey of commercial properties
in Xiamen, China respectively. These have enhanced the
property portfolio of the Group and the Board believes
the Group will benefit from the anticipated growth in value
of these properties in the long-term prospect. During the
year, the Group recorded rental revenue from its investment
properties of HK$7,064,000 (2009: HK$6,449,000).

Subsequent to the year end date, the Company completed
the top-up placing of 722,580,000 new shares and raised
gross receipt of approximately HK$150 million for the
Group’s future business development and working capital
requirement. Following the top-up placing, the equity base of
the Company was further broadened and strengthened and
the Group believes that it will continue to be benefited from
that and its increasing exposure to the global entertainment

industry.

Looking forward, the Group will explore opportunities to enter
into China’s theatrical market, and exploit opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward

their long-term support.
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Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2010, the Group had available banking facilities
of approximately HK$87.6 million, of which approximately
HK$41.4 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s bank
deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and properties with net book values of HK$212.5 million were
pledged to secure banking facilities. The Group’s gearing
ratio of 10.3% as at 31st March 2010 was based on the
total of bank loans and overdrafts (of which HK$19,950,000,
HK$2,403,000, HK$7,526,000 and HK$9,792,000 are
repayable within one year, in the second year, in the third to
fifth year and after the fifth year respectively) and obligations
under finance leases of HK$3,023,000 (repayable within one
year) of HK$42,694,000 in aggregate and the shareholders’
funds of approximately HK$412,686,000. The Group’s
borrowings and bank balances are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and the Group has no
significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

At 31st March 2010, the Company had contingent liabilities
in respect of guarantees given to banks for facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$36.7 million,
and commitments in respect of film production, film
and program licensing agreements, property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$8.9 million.
The commitments will be financed by the Group’s internal
resources and banking facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2010, the Group employed 101 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on individual
staff’s performance. In addition to the basic salaries, staff
benefits include discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group also has
a share option scheme whereby qualified participants may be
granted options to acquire shares of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Executive directors

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing, aged 51, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible for
the corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is
the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 and appointed Member of
the Election Committee for the Performing Arts sub-sector of
the Legislative Council Election. He is also the independent
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”).

Mr. TONG Hing Chi, aged 55, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has over 20 years of experience in the entertainment and
multimedia industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. TONG
has been the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong, Kowloon &
New Territories Motion Picture Industry Association Limited
(“MPIA”) since 2001. Prior to his resignations effective from
3rd June 2010 and 31st October 2008 respectively, Mr. TONG
had been the executive director of Neo Telemedia Limited
and Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited, both of which are
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAU Kei Leung, aged 46, is responsible for the
selection and acquisition of films and programs and the
formulation of sales and marketing strategies. He is also
responsible for the sub-licensing of film rights to overseas
video distributors and TV operators in Hong Kong and
overseas. He joined the Group in 1987 and has over 20 years

of experience in the home video entertainment industry.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENREEEEBAEZE

Non-executive directors

Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu, aged 75, has years of experience in the
manufacturing sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr.
CHAN joined the Group in 1988.

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 54, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and is the
Executive Vice President of International Data Group (“IDG”)
— the world’s leading IT media, research and exposition
company, President of IDG-Asia, and a partner of IDG Capital
Partners, which has headed IDG’s operations in information
technology (“IT”) publishing, market research and tradeshows
in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Shong is now the trustee of
Boston University. Mr. Shong has been appointed as the
Vice Chairman and a non-executive director of Media China
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of

the Stock Exchange, with effective from 21st December 2009.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee G. LAM, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February 2007.
He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and Sciences,
a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of
Business Administration, all from the University of Ottawa in
Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration
from Carleton University in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma
in English and Hong Kong Law and a Bachelor of Law (Hons)
from Manchester Metropolitan University in the UK, a PCLL
in law (and has completed the Bar Course) from the City
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Law from the University
of Wolverhampton in the UK, and a Doctor of Philosophy from
the University of Hong Kong. Dr. Lam has over 28 years of
multinational general management, corporate governance,
investment banking, and direct investment experience.
He is Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong, and serves as an independent or
non-executive director of several publicly-listed companies
in the Asia Pacific region. Having served as a Part-time

Member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms,
Dr. Lam is a Member of the Jilin Province Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC),
a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Board
Member of the East-West Center Foundation, a Member of
the Young Presidents’ Organization, a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and a Member of its Corporate
Governance Committee, a Fellow of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre, a Member of the General
Council and the Corporate Governance Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies, and a Visiting
Professor at the School of Economics & Management of
Tsinghua University in Beijing. On 13th September 2009, Dr.
Lam was appointed Independent Non-executive Director of
CDC Software Corporation, a NASDAQ listed company. On
26th April 2010, Dr. Lam was appointed as an Independent
Director of Top Global Limited, a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange. On 11th May, 2010, Dr. Lam was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of Imagi
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main

Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Ms. WANG Huarong, aged 46, has over 18 years of
experience, including management experience, in information
technology and financial service industry and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in October 2005. She had been a General Manager of
Sparkice (Hong Kong) Ltd. which is a leading e-commerce
company focusing on international trade of China market, a
Senior Software Engineer at DSP Development Corporation
in Boston, and worked at Fixed Income Technology Group
of Goldman Sachs International. Ms. WANG received her
Bachelor of Science degree in computer science from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, and a Master of
Science degree in Information Systems from North-Eastern
University in the USA.

EERSEEEAEZEIN

BEFLEREE - BEBELTLARABEER
ZEERVAFRBEREZEESZEE BEAELK
BEBER 2 RERE  LBESBRHIIT
HEBNPREREAHF2BER R=2FF
hWERAT=ZAEZEAEZEMTER L
T HICDC Software Corporation 2 383 JEH,
TES R-ZE-ZFNA-THEZAE
AEFNMEBFRBMLETNSBRREIR
NAZBYES RR-Z-ZFHA+-—
HEZEAREBEIMERLTNESH
BEERBRARZBIIFEHITES -

FEELLT 465 BEBTN\FREAMR
BERemBETEZCR(BESELSR)
REZBZRF+ARZEERARNAZBYH
BTES - TZTEAERREER(FRB)E
RAT — —BEEEIRFEBEREZ TS Z
HEEFHELARIZAKE - KL WDSP
Development Corporation & & & & T 712
B REREBREBWED - TL Rt
EMZEMRAKREEETERBBE LB
RREERILAZBHEAERGRBELE

i o

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #}



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSEEEAEZ/IN

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man, aged 53, has extensive experience
in the sector of performance and cultural and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2005. Mr. CHEUNG has also participated in a
number of community associations, including the Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Chairman);
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election
Committee (First and Second Election Committee Member);
Deputy of the National People’s Congress of PRC Election
Committee (Ninth and Tenth Election Committee Member) and
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Guangxi

Zhuangzu Zizhiqu (Member).

Senior management

Mr. CHAN Lun Ho, aged 40 is the Group’s financial controller
and is responsible for all financial and accounting matters
of the Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
18 years of auditing and accounting experience. He joined the
Group in July 2002.

Mr. LONG Sao lan, aged 51, is the Program Development
Manager of MATV Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
LONG is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s TV operations. Mr. LONG has over 28 years
of experience in TV operations. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2000, Mr. LONG worked for Commercial Radio,
Television Broadcasting Ltd, HK Cable TV and Chinese

Entertainment Television.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The principles adopted by the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability
to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
has complied with the Code for the year ended 31st March
2010, with the exception of the deviation in respect of the
appointment term of non-executive directors as mentioned
below.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have complied with
such code of conduct and the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors for the year ended 31st March 2010.

Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details
of the basis of preparation of the financial statements are
set out in note 2 to the financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2010, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including three executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer)
and Mr. Chau Kei Leung, two non-executive Directors — Mr.
Hugo Shong and Mr. Chan Ngan Piu, and three independent
non-executive Directors — Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang
Huarong and Mr. Cheung Ming Man. Biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 9 to 12.
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TEERME

Board of directors (Continued)

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules and there is no relationship among members of
the Board and the independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms, There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to deal with the requirement in respect of the appointment
terms of non-executive directors as required under the code

provision.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year, the board members attended the two board
meetings to approve the interim and annual results. The
executive directors also held and attended four other board

meetings.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.
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Nomination of directors

No nomination committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable
candidates to be members of the Board when there is a
vacancy or any additional director is considered necessary.
The Board will review the qualifications of the candidates
identified and determine the suitability of their qualifications,

experience and background.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by two board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual
and interim reports; (b) to discuss and review with the
auditors of the Company on the scope and findings of
the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control procedures of the Group.
The audit committee consists of the three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Dr. Lee
G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and Mr. Cheung Ming Man.

The chairman of the committee is Dr. Lee G. Lam.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year.

All of the members attended the meetings.
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A

JJ:%E/D #&%

Board Committees (Continued) EFZRA® @)
(1) Audit Committee (Continued) (1) FEER®(E)

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2010 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosure have been made.

AEBRBE-_ZE—ZF=A=1+—H
LEEZREERTHES  FELHE
REBRADEZRFCHEXEZES
B ZZEERARSEENETE
AEstERRREMGFER  FEfFHRE
I o

IR

(2) Remuneration Committee 2 FH=EE
The Company has established a Remuneration AATERE LHRA 2 BEMKRIEIL
Committee according to the relevant provisions of the EEmREHECFNZES - HFE
Listing Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary BEAQBRBERALATDEHEMEEER
duties are to (a) make recommendations to the Board EREEEFM e BERRABOESE
based on the Company’s policy and structure for all REEZ RO AHFTHFMBERENLIE
remuneration of directors and senior management; and AREFEREZREF °
(b) establish formal and transparent procedures for
remuneration policy development.
The remuneration committee consists of the three FHNZEERAQA=RBILEHTE
independent non-executive directors of the Company, EMREEL  TERLZLIRREHBL
namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and Mr. AR - ZEEXIEAMREBL -
Cheung Ming Man. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lee G. Lam.
During the year, the Committee met once to discuss RER ZEESRT-XREEUFTHRE
remuneration related matters. All of the members MiEEEE - 2 RHEHEZER -8
attended the meeting. During the meeting, the bt ZEETAATESEZREREH
performance and remuneration of the executive directors B SEsm Rt/ EBBEBUER o
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed
and approved.

Auditor’s remuneration BB EhEl &

RATRZHMBEEAERREEI 2 BHEH
RENLEZMEZEIREMBE - BEY
1,280,000 B T2 € HEBAEEHE ==
—EF=ZA=Z+-HLEFEEZREKRERN
BRe £ IEZEADILBMETERIEXE
BR#E TAE ©

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 32 to 34. An amount of
approximately HK$1,280,000 was charged to the Group’s
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st March
2010. There was no significant non-audit service assignment
undertaken by the external auditor during the year.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2010.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note

42 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the

financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 35.
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity and note 28 to the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of

the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties held by
the Group are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
Details of those principal investment properties are set out on
pages 174 to 176.

Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are

set out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2010, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$233,534,000, comprising
contributed surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated
losses of HK$1,486,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and

its issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to

existing shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
173.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the

shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 30th August 2005 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The

principal terms are set out as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Group’s businesses; and to provide
additional incentives to employees, consultants, agents,
advisers, customers, suppliers, business and joint
venture partners of the Company, its subsidiaries and its

associated companies.

Participants

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the “Board”)
may offer to grant share options (the “Options”) to
any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner
of the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated
companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as the Board may in
its absolute discretion select. Provided the Board so
agrees, such offer may be accepted by a related trust of

the relevant Qualifying Grantee.

Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. The Board’s administrative

powers include the authority, in its discretion:

(i) to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may

be granted under the Share Option Scheme;
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(¢) Administration (Continued)
(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the law, and the time of the grant

of Options;

(iiiy to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option

Scheme;
(iv) to approve forms of option agreements;

(v) to determine the terms and conditions of any

Option. Such terms and conditions may include:
° the exercise price;

o the period within which the Shares must be
taken up under the Option, which must not be

more than 10 years from the date of grant;

. the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it can vest (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify

any minimum holding period);

o the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not

specify any performance targets);

o the amount, if any, payable on application
or acceptance of the Option and the period
within which payments or calls must or may
be made or loans for such purposes must be

repaid;

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #§

Az Est® (=)
(c) FREBEE(F)

(ii)

(iif)

ZHREWRARERRE - RE
RHUBREZEE

RERBBRESEIRE 2Z0E
RIEMP R 2BRDEE ;

HEBRERRE 2T

REE AR Z RRR IR ©
SHRRR R TR -

o TREME:

e REBREAEARNG 2B
R ZMRAGBRARE
AEEE T4

e BERERBAARFEZRAE
HR(AE) (B RE SR
BUERBEEMNRESEY
fR)

e BREERTENAENZX
BER(WR) (BRESTER
BUWERXIBEMNRRER)

e HENEMBRERNAXMY
ZEBE(WNE)RLAY T RE
NRYEAIBRAMEER
BEERZHIR



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Administration (Continued)
(vi) to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to

the Share Option Scheme;

(vii) to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme;

and

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of

the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption. On and
subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its

absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of any Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned and,
provided the Board so agrees, by a related trust of the
named Qualifying Grantee for a period of 28 days from
the date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board

may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offer.
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Share option scheme (Continued) BB E (=)

(f) Subscription price (f) &2EEE
The subscription price in respect of any particular TS EBERECIABEEAESEN
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its BEHEHEBERERZENEET2EH
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the B EZRBETSEATIZEH
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be ZEEE (VAR BBz AR
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price RPN 2RO TE ; () REBEREA
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily MR A EEERBRAMZBHREMYI 2
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average BRAFHWTHE Rii)—REROD 2@
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock =

Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)

the nominal value of a share.

(g) Option period (g) FREXIERIR
The period within which the Shares must be taken up REBREAENARN Z2HABBREES
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its RIEHERERZENERE  HZH
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period BAERBAERERERL BHEs10
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the Fo

relevant Option.

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the (h) HERENBETZERERAHE

Share Option Scheme

(i) Overriding Limit () EERHE
The limit on the number of shares which may be RIBBRETTEIRAQXTMEMEAM
issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options SRR E R RITEZRITEBR
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share EERESTESTIRTZRME
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the 2 FAEBBATEORITRE 2
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in 30% ° A AR T BREAQAE
issue from time to time. No options may be granted W2 HEMESEREHRES
under any schemes of the Company if this will i

result in the limit being exceeded.
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph
(h)(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph
(h)(iii) below, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme (“Initial Mandate Limit”). Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other schemes will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%

limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolutions of the
shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders
containing such information as required by the
Listing Rules before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under
the limit as refreshed (“Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the scheme or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of

calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(iv) Grant to specifically identified participants
Specifically identified participants may be granted
Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The Company
may in addition seek separate approval by its
shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided the
Options in excess of the limit are granted only to
participants specifically identified by the Company
and a circular to shareholders containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules is
issued before such approval is sought. The date
of the board meeting for proposing such further
grant should be taken as the date of grant for such

grants.

(v) Limit for each participant
The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of Options granted (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period to
each participant must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue. Where any further grant of Options to a
participant would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
shares in issue, such further grant shall be subject
to separate approval by shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. Prior to seeking
such approval, the Company shall issue a circular
containing to shareholders such information as
required by the Listing Rules. The date of the board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be

taken as the date of grant for such grants.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBER AT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (Continued)

(h) Maximum number of shares available under the
Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Following the shareholders’ resolution passed on
29th August 2007, the Mandate Limit was refreshed
to 98,209,090 shares of HK$0.1 each (equivalent to
491,045,450 subdivided shares of HK$0.02 each) ,
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of
passing the resolution. As at 31st March 2010, there was

no option granted under the Mandate Limit.

Directors

The directors during the year were:

Executive directors

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. TONG Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. CHAU Kei Leung

Non-executive directors
Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu
Mr. Hugo SHONG

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lee G. LAM

Ms. WANG Huarong

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.
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(18 % 74 491,045,450 I% % B% M {8 0.02
BRLTZIFARND)  HRBEBABRRE
BZBERITRDI10% - R-TB—FEFE=
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHE

Directors’ service contracts EFEZRBEH

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the BREERREBEFASREEEERCES
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract B AR QT ET L A AR — FRE LT RE
with the Company which is not determinable within one BEECEERERIN 2RBEEH -

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts EREZAVRE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s ARE - HERAGASIHEWE A RBESHE
business to which the Company, its holding company or SJNANGRESHESBERETEEEKX
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of EREHEASEERERE MARFAEDS
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or FRNEMBEEEEEREHN -

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior EFREEEEARZEE/[

management
Brief biographical details of directors and senior management EERSEEEBABCZERENENEIR
are set out on pages 9 to 12. 12H
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests, EFRERTRARRELAFTH
and short positions in the shares, EMERREEZERK « AR
underlying shares and debentures of the REEBSCEERRE
Company or any associated corporation

At 31st March 2010, the interests and short positions of RZBE-—ZF=ZA=+—H  BREAQITIK

each director and chief executive in the shares, underlying FEEREBEMRM (T HEMG ) 535215 M=%

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated EvBRMAREI BRI EEZBEA
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures BEERBOTHRABERAAREEHE

Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by EE(RBSFBROZER) ZRMD - HERD

the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to REEZEZEZRRENT ¢

the Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company (a) BREEOC.02EBTZIHLATIEER

% of the
issued share
capital of the

Company
Number of shares beneficially held — as at
Long position 31st March
ERRFAcEnE$E — 8 2010
R-ZE—ZF
Personal Family Corporate =HA=+—H{&®
Name of director interests interests interests NFIBBRITERE
EERR EBAER XERES FEER ZEASBL
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing 196,037,500 189,843,750 2,127,887,550 51.19%
TEE L% Note (i) Note (ii)
B () B (i)
Mr. TONG Hing Chi 16,875,000 - - 0.34%
EEREE
Mr. CHAU Kei Leung 36,045,000 — — 0.73%
BHERELE
Mr. CHAN Ngan Piu 10,125,000 - - 0.21%
BREREZ B4
Notes: BT
(i)  These shares are held by Ms. LI Pik Lin, the spouse of (i) ZERMABZTEEEE 2HRESZ
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing. BELTHEHE -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, iy ZEROBZEELTESRZESZ
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. LI Kuo Hsing. ‘AA]Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited
BB -
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EETHE

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests,
and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation
(Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred

shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

EFREETHARRELTEH
EMEHEEEZRG - HERK
TREEECESR KR &)

(b) FLFMBLARED
FEHALEBAFTETIMBELAER
EE1 BT ZEBRERELERD

Number of
non-voting
deferred

shares held

Personal

interests

R ER R

BERRZEHEE

Name £ EAES
Mei Ah Laser Disc Company Limited EDEHNAEERAA 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnHYERIEFRAT 10,000
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuYERERRAT 500,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its associated companies or
its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated

corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in or had been
granted or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the
Company and its associated companies (within the meaning
of the SFO).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

Substantial shareholders’ interests and FERREREFLAFTZERG RIHERR
short positions in the shares, underlying BipZEEBRERE

shares in the company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2010, the Company had been notified of the following

RIS KB S EPEXVE LR HEARE
FERFBEMER R-Z2—BF=4
-8 AATEEBANTHEALAAD
BABRARS% R L2 TEREEERAR o
PEREBLXHBEANESRBETHR
ABE LU B o

substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect

of the directors and chief executives.

SREE.2EBRXTZF AT HER
Number of shares — Long position

BRI E — A

Interests of

Interests in ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

persons

acting in

Corporate concert
interests —HiTH Total
EEES AtziEa st
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund — A L.P. 54,460,000 291,300,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund — L.P. 266,472,000 79,288,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Investors L.P. 24,828,000 320,932,000 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Investors Associates Ltd. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Zhou Quan &% 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Mc Govern Patrick J. 345,760,000 — 345,760,000
Breyer James 345,760,000 — 345,760,000

Notes: Wit

(@) The total long position interests in the above parties of (@) LuiAt #1772 R 345,760,000 8 IR

345,760,000 shares, representing 7.04% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31st March 2010, refer to the
same parcel of shares.

BIEER - > AR TRZE—FF
=A=1T—HZBEBITRAT.04% °
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EETHE

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier

— five largest suppliers combined

Sales

— the largest customer

— five largest customers combined

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major

suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected transactions
The related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions

under the Listing Rules.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of the Company’s issued shares as required

under the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on

pages 13 to 16.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ interest in competing business

None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business

of the Group.

Auditor
The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN ZEEHRE

PRICEAVATERHOUSE( QOPERS

RERMKEGFEERR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to
172, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st March 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BN ZEEHRE

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st March 2010 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses) — net
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Impairment of goodwill

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income
Finance cost

Finance costs — net
Share of losses of associated

companies

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit/(loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

Dividend

The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Bz == —Z4F = f =+— HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st March 2010

Note
o3
U&= 5
SHER AR 7
ESV
H AU A 5
Hplis,(BE) — F58 6
HER MG HERX 7
THERIX 7
EERE 15
SRR (B58)
i PN 8
=% 8
BB KA — FEE
FE{h Bt E N B EiE
18

B EHanER (&)
R (F%), H& 9
FERER,(FE)
BB

RABEZEFEA

DR RER
BRERN, (BE)

EHK 11

s 11
BE 40

= A ><
mellmk
2010 2009
—s-%% —BENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
153,362 191,559
(91,992) (145,635)
61,370 45,924
18,439 21,901
43,920 (12,693)
(9,242) (14,586)
(52,618) (87,528)
- (22,413)
61,869 (69,395)
1,405 3,344
(3,435) (8,414)
(2,030) (5,070)
- (1,570)
59,839 (76,035)
(7,631) 4,062
52,208 (71,973)
51,965 (71,529)
243 (444)
52,208 (71,973)
HK cents HK cents
y--3/1/] B
1.06 (1.46)
1.06 (1.46)

BAUEIREZHEARGERERER 2B

consolidated financial statements. 238D o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZEBER

For the year ended 31st March 2010 &2 —ZF—Z# = =+—HIFF/Z

2010 2009
—E—-TF —ZETNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bzt FAET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF(BR) 52,208 (71,973)
Other comprehensive Hth2EKkE (5H8) :
income/(loss):
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of BFEMG (B B
buildings 14(i) (2,418) 3,440
Deferred taxation arising from BFEMEM(BH)E
revaluation deficit/(surplus) of 4 2 IEFERIE
buildings 33 399 (568)
Fair value gains/(losses) on AHEEMKEEZ AT
available-for-sale financial Bz (EBE)
assets 23(a) 26,906 (40,602)
Currency translation differences NS 2 (1,599) (803)
Other comprehensive income/ FEREM2EKE (B
(loss) for the year, net of tax 18) ' MERIRIA 23,288 (38,533)
Total comprehensive income/ FRZEWRE (R @H
(loss) for the year 75,496 (110,506)
Attributable to: AL
— Equity holders of the Company  — A" FEEHEEFA A 75,270 (110,062)
— Minority interest — DEREEE 226 (444)
Total comprehensive income/ ERZEKE (iR RH
(loss) for the year 75,496 (110,506)
The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these FAUZIEZHE RN REVBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. xia
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ASSETS
Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use
rights
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Interests in associated
companies
Interest in a jointly controlled
entity
Available-for-sale financial assets
Film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Pledged bank deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of
the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Shareholders’ funds
Minority interests

Total equity

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
reEEAER

BE

FRENEE

HE LR L it AR
M - HERRIE
BLEE

BREYE

R E N E 2B

HEEFEE s

AHHENBERE
EXINE BEDEY
E¥MERE

R E

FE

g5 K H A EKFRIE
BRATFEFFABRR 2
BEE
EEARITER
ReERkERBRLEE

HaE

o

FAFESGRAAERERS
B G R

R

RAD R ME

f#tE

RREE

DEIRRERS

HEs

The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

R-E—FF=F= + A As at 31st March 2010
2010 2009

=5 —EENF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HraE FET FET
13 32,025 11,946
14 105,852 106,129
15 - —
16 123,898 84,261
18 —_ _
19(a) - —
23(a) 45,086 18,180
17 74,198 55,582
381,059 276,098

24 6,951 6,945
25 36,794 68,712
23(b) 50,124 22,476
22(b) 43,517 43,500
26 24,628 56,620
162,014 198,253

543,073 474,351

27 98,209 98,209
27 — 167,569
28(a) 314,477 71,638
412,686 337,416

2,434 265

415,120 337,681
AMBEATREZHEARGET KRR 2B

B W
okk
s
S
o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEBER

As at 31st March 2010 R =& —ZFF=H=+—H

2010 2009
=5 —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HraE FETT FET
LIABILITIES &\
Non-current liabilities ERDAMR
Borrowings B8 30(a) 19,721 —
Obligations under finance leases Eﬂ’ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬁkﬂ% 30(b) - 3,023
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHAE 33 11,052 7,612
30,773 10,635
Current liabilities mEN &R
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMmENTFIE 29 68,718 78,848
Borrowings BE 30(a) 19,950 22,387
Obligations under finance leases Al A AR 30(b) 3,023 3,677
Derivative financial instrument TTEMBETA 31 - 36
Convertible notes — ABRRERE — 8830
liability portion 31 - 19,404
Current income tax liabilities ENEAFTISHHaE 5,489 1,683
97,180 126,035
Total liabilities HaR 127,953 136,670
Total equity and liabilities HESRAR 543,073 474,351
Net current assets MEBEERHE 64,834 72,218
Total assets less current HEERTDHAR
liabilities 445,893 348,316
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FER EEH
The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these FBAUZIN2EZHE RN REUBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. 238D
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ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERDEE
Interests in subsidiaries GNP £
Current assets MENEE
Prepayment and other receivables  FE{ 18 & E b fE U 508
Cash and cash equivalents ReNBEEEEH
Total assets wEE
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to A FEEEE AFEEE
the Company’s equity holders B GEE
Share capital [N
Share premium B 10 E
Reserves e
Total equity HiEa
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities i =R

Other payables H b (S FRIE

Convertible notes — liability portion A/ E = — SE3 5

Derivative financial instruments TTHEMBETA
Total liabilities HAR
Total equity and liabilities HERRER
Net current assets MEBEERH

Total assets less current liabilities #EEF &GS

Director
EE
Li Kuo Hsing
FER

The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

BALANCE SHEET

> ==
EEEER
R-ZE—FF = H=+1—H As at 31st March 2010
2010 2009
—E—2F —ETREF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaE FET FEx
20 331,641 335,653
837 20,261
26 10 9
847 20,270
332,488 355,923
27 98,209 98,209
27 - 167,569
28(b) 233,546 70,211
331,755 335,989
733 494
31 - 19,404
31 - 36
733 19,934
733 19,934
332,488 355,923
114 336
331,755 335,989
Director
EE
Tong Hing Chi
EER

FAUBINEZHEFAR GRS HERR 2E

B o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SABRRDE
For the year ended 31st March 2010 &2 — & —ZF = =+1+—HILF/Z

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BERTLFREREL
Available-
for-sale
financial
Share-based assets
Share payment Buildings  revaluation
redemption reserve revaluation reserve Minority
Share Share reserve JBR  Contributed  Exchange reserve fHE  Accumulated interests Total
capital  premium & 316 0] surplus ~ difference BTEf HhEE losses b equity
B RiR RE&H 1 | LIV TS EREH il Bl AHER Bxig #ha
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$:000
-4 747 747 AT &1 747 7A71 AT 747 747 AT
At fst April 2008 RZZENE
mA-A 98,209 167,569 12 2,197 107,099 (16) 11,485 56,358 (15,435) i 447519
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - = - = (71529) )
Other comprehensive EHRENE/(BR)
income!/(loss)
Suplusonrevaluation of ~ EFEfES
buildings (note 14(j)) W) - - - - - - 3440 - - - 3440
Deferred taxation arising from ~ €5 E (247
revaluation of buidings ERAEH
(note 33 (5) - - - = = = (568) = = = (368)
Fair value loss on avallable- ~ IEHESKEE L
for-sale financial assets ATEEE
(note 23(2) (k2238) - - - = = = - (s = - s
Currency translation heagEE
differences - - - - - (803) - - - - (803)
Total other comprehensive ~ Efi2EE M
loss = = = = = (603) W (6 = - 5%
Total comprehensive loss ~ 2FHREH - - - - - (803) 2872 (40602) (71,529) (44d)  (110,506)
Transaction with owners ~ BEEAZES
Expiy of share-based Wz fAHER
compensation (note 32) %) - - - (22,197) - - - - 2,197 - -
Minority interests arisngon ~~ £H4HES 298k
busingss combination RER - - - - - - - - - 668 668
Total transactions with HERACRREN
owners - - - (22.197) - - - - 2197 668 668
At 31st March 2009 RZZENE
ZR=t-8 98,209 167,569 12 - 107,099 (819) 14,357 16,756 (64,767) 265 337,681
The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these BAMFAT2E ARG ESTBRR
consolidated financial statements. 228D ©
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER
i FE == T = §=+— [ /= For the year ended 31st March 2010

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BERFLTRERFA
Availahle-
for-sale
financial
assets  (Accumulated
Share Buildings  revaluation losses|/
redemption revaluation reserve retained Minority
Share Share reserve  Contributed Exchange reserve g eamings interests Total
capital premium ] surplus  difference BPER HERE  (BiER)/ ULl equity
ks kiR DR LN LS EREH ] EffR REEH RRiig &

HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
f&r Tt TEr Tt TE&r fér TEn TEr fiEn TEn

Atfst April 2009, asperabove  H=EEAEMA-R.

MEXfi 98,209 167,569 12 107,099 (819) 14,357 15,756 (64,767) 265 337,681

Comprehensive income 2kE
Profit for the year Al - = = = = = = 1,965 4 52,208
Other comprehensive EH2ENE/(BR)

income/(loss)
Deficit on revaluation of buildings  EFE (554

(note 14(i) () - - - - - (2418) - - = (2418)
Deferred taxation arising from S E({E4 2 EERA

revaluation of buldings (Wi233)

(note 33) - - - - - 399 - - - 399
Fair valug gain on avallable-for- T HERTEE Y

sale financial assets ATERE

(note 23(2) (W235) - - - - - = 26,006 = = 26,906
Curtency translation differences  JMEEES - - = = (1,582) = = = (17) (1,599)
Total other comprehensive ~ Efi2EKEEH

income . . . . (158 019 %306 . (M) 2,288
Total comprehensive 2ikaEH

income . . - . (158 019 %306 51,965 2% 76,49

Transactions with owners BREALRE
Transfer from share premium ~~ EBERAEE

(1ot 280 (W2 - (e - 81,90 - - - 85,659 - -
Capital inection from mnority ~ HUFHEAFES

interests arising from L)akREs

incorporation of a new i

subsidiary - - - - - - - - 1,943 1943
Total transactions with owners  E§&EAZZ 788 - (167,569) - 81,910 - - - 85,659 1943 1,943
At 31st March 2010 Wo5-2%

=p=1-H 98,209 - 12 189,009 (2401) 12,338 42,662 12,857 2434 415,120

X

The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these FAMFANREZHTARRETNBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. BB -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n‘/-.r\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbiﬁ

For the year ended 31st March 2010 &= ==

—EF=A=1—HIUFE

2010 2009
—Z—-ZF§ —ETAF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k=3 FEIT FET
Cash flows from operating BEXBZHERE
activities
Cash generated from operations EEMBES 34(a) 73,943 21,954
Income tax refund/(paid) BIERE (B)FriEH 14 (4)
Net cash generated from REEBKMEBRE
operating activities FRE 73,957 21,950
Cash flows from investing BREFTEBZHERE
activities
Purchase of leasehold land and BERAS TR L ihER
land use rights & 13 (20,634) -
Purchase of property, plant and IBEYE  MEBEKRRE
equipment 14 (10,568) (2,229)
Purchase of investment properties BB R &Y% 16 (17,133) -
Purchase of film rights, films ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ% BHEPE
in progress and film royalty FEEMEZRS
deposits 17 (53,388) 28,311)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEEKT B A E]
cash acquired il Fﬁﬁﬁ%kﬁ% 38 - (19,810)
Advance to a jointly controlled AT HEEGE
entity 19(a) - (443)
Repayment from associated NS
companies 18 1,780 3,321
Interest received 2 WFE 8 1,405 2,868
Net cash used in investing activities #&E8 AR ST (98,538) (44,604)

The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these

MEATREZMERTREMBRER2E

B W
okk
s
S
o

consolidated financial statements.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HmEESRER

Bz == —Z4F = f =+— HIFF/Z For the year ended 31st March 2010

2010 2009
—Z-ZF —EENEFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FEIT FEx
Cash flows from financing MEITHZHRERE
activities
Repurchase of convertible notes AR 31 - (10,000)
Repayment of convertible notes EETBEREE 31 (20,000) —
Interest on convertible notes paid BN AREEEFRE 31 (1,614) (1,203)
Net proceeds from bank RITEE ZMEBFIEFE
borrowings 34(b) 16,576 16,000
Interests paid for loans and ENERRELZFE
overdrafts 8 (938) (627)
Repayment of capital element of EERERN 2 ERIBD
finance leases 34(b) (3,677) (4,304)
Interest element of finance leases RIERN 2 FEE D 8 (287) (425)
Increase in pledged deposit 2R R EFEFIE (17) (13,500)
Capital injection from minority BT B A B EE
interests arising from 2R ERTE
incorporation of a new
subsidiary 1,943 —
Net cash used in financing activities Fi& % 8T AR & 548 (8,014) (14,059)
Net decrease in cash and cash NeRFERATRLEA
equivalents WY BRE (32,595) (36,713)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHZRENZERIEE£ER
beginning of the year 50,233 86,936
Exchange differences fE 5 =2 (105) 10
Cash and cash equivalents atend F#&ZH&RERHE&ER
of the year 17,533 50,233
Analysis of balances of cashand HR&RERKREEHZ
cash equivalents BESH
Cash at bank and on hand ROKFEES 26 24,628 56,620
Bank overdrafts RITEX 30 (7,095) (6,387)
17,533 50,233
The notes on pages 44 to 172 are an integral part of these FAMFINREZHMTRARRETBERRZE
consolidated financial statements. 8IS o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, sale and distribution
of films and programs and processing of audio visual

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 20th July 2010.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of buildings, investment properties,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative

financial instruments.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

B RS AR AR B

2 BEESHRREE®

2.1

RERE
FEEGEHBHEREZREETBS
LS (EBESAAE DA
BB BRELER(TEBH
BHRELER ) RIE - NFS M
BRRBBELRAERR - L2
FoREWE IHEUEMBE
B BOVESABZRZHMBEE
ERITAEMB TR ZEMMFELE
&l e

RENSEBYBREELN UK
BRFEREASE TERIIMET -
ENREEEERRAREES
HRBREPITERLALE - S REE
ZAERSEEMMN 2K - P
REAGREMBHRRBERBRRMN
fhar 280 - EMEE4 PIE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) The following amendments to standards are

mandatory for the first time for the financial

year ended 31st March 2010 and are relevant

to the Group.

HKAS 1 (revised), “Presentation of
financial statements”. The revised
standard prohibits the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is
“non-owner changes in equity”) in the
statement of changes in equity, requiring
“non-owner changes in equity” to be
presented separately from owner’s
changes in equity. All “non-owner
changes in equity” are required to be

shown in a performance statement.

Entities can choose whether to
present one performance statement
(the statement of comprehensive
income) or two statements (the income
statement and the statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has
elected to present two statements: an
income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so
that it also is in conformity with the
revised standard. Since the change
in accounting policy only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact

on earnings per share.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE)
(a) (Continued) (@ (#&)

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments
— Disclosures” (amendment). The
amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk. In
particular, the amendment requires
disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting
policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on

earnings per share.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments. The
new standard requires a “management
approach”, under which segment
information is presented on the same
basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. This has resulted in an
increase in the number of reportable
segments presented. In addition, the
segments are reported in a manner
that is more consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker.

e EBUBWMESERET
ST A —KE ]
(BETA) o AIEFTER
REREEAAFETER
RBETRMEZIKE -
ZIET BRI ZREAF
EHZTERBHEELF
BT E - ARETEE
SEECHEEIMEE
WAL ELEZREF

e TEEBMBMEEAES
SR ARG DB o RIEH
ZRAERFAIEEE
FE] B2 EERE
ZRE RIS AR A
ZHREEFR o thE
BFr25 2 B EDE
‘gﬂﬁiﬁ'bﬂ o L5 - AR

EoNEGEEL
E}?&%%TMAZW%WE
SER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #R



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following amendments to standards
and interpretations to existing standards are
mandatory for the year ended 31st March
2010, but are not currently relevant for the
Group or does not have any material financial
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements:

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and

(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and Embedded Derivatives

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

New/revised standards, amendments and

interpretations to existing standards that are

not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 5

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

Related party disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Classification of rights issue

Eligible Hedged Items

First-time Adoption of HKFRS

Group cash-settled share-based

payment transaction

Business Combinations

Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations

Financial Instruments

Prepayments of a minimum funding

requirement

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to

Owners

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

RS ER R M EE
EESHBREE 2
21 HERE(H
€ MAREMEAEEMIMES

R 2 HT ST R
RERAZBTRRRE :

BRI RAEUY, BHEALRE

(&)

ERETHEAETY. HFARBY
(&) BHEE

BRGHRAERY HR2IE
CHEN)

BRI RAEY SERIER
CHEN)

BRMBRERN  ERRGEEM
F 15 (£13T) B2

FEMRHEEN  KERER
EVEACHEN) DRG3f

HERS

BEMBMEEN  EBAH
EREACCHD)

BRMBRERY  BEHEER
#5% EERCAL

BRMBRERY  MBIA
F95%

EE(ERMBRER BEELERZ
BZEE)—RE  BRX
F145

EE(ARABRER OEFADK
BZES) —RE  HNSHEE
FATH

ER(ERNERER UARAIEER
BZES) —RE  UKER
F19%
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

Improvements to HKFRSs published by
HKICPA in October 2008:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 2 (Amendment)
HKAS 16 (Amendment)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 20 (Amendment)

HKAS 23 (Amendment)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)
HKAS 28 (Amendment)
HKAS 29 (Amendment)
HKAS 31 (Amendment)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)
HKAS 38 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKAS 40 (Amendment)
HKAS 41 (Amendment)

HKFRS 5 (Amendment)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Property, Plant and Equipment

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants
and Disclosure of Government
Assistance

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

Interests in Joint Ventures

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

Investment Property

Agriculture

Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations

Other minor amendments to HKFRS 7 —
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, HKAS 8 —
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, HKAS 10 — Events
After the Balance Sheet Date, HKAS 18 —
Revenue and HKAS 34 — Interim Financial

Reporting.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d)

The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations to existing
standards are not yet effective for the year
ended 31st March 2010 and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Improvements to HKFRS published by
HKICPA in May 2009:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Statement of Cash Flows

HKAS 17 (Amendment) Leases

HKAS 18 (Amendment) Revenue

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 (Amendment) Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment

HKFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations
HKFRS 8 (Amendment) Operating Segments

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16
(Amendment)

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Improvements to HKFRS published by
HKICPA in May 2010:

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of HKFRS

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Business Combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

2 BEESHRREE®

21 REREEHE)

(d)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(d) (Continued)
Transition requirements for amendments
arising as a result of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRS but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRS would have a
significant impact on its results of operations
and financial position.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EETHBREE#®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 FEIEEE)
(a) HIB2RE(#E)

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated

income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Transactions with minority interests

(c)

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to minority interests that
result in gains and losses for the Group
are recorded in the consolidated income
statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associated companies includes
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any
accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in
the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associated company.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 EEFHRFREE®)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 HAkB(#E)
(c) Associated companies (Continued) (c) BELF(E)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associated companies are
recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in associated companies are
stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associated companies
are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received and receivable.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint ventures

(i)

Jointly controlled entities

Jointly controlled entities are joint
ventures in respect of which contracted
arrangements are established between
the participating ventures and whereby
the Group together with the venturer
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to join control and none of the
venturers has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using the

equity method of accounting.

Equity accounting is discontinued
from the date on which the Group
ceases to have joint control over, or
have significant influence in, a jointly
controlled entity. When the carrying
amount of the investment in the jointly
controlled entity reaches zero, equity
method of accounting is discontinued
unless the Group has incurred or
obligations or guaranteed obligations in

respect of the jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in jointly controlled entities
are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

Jointly controlled operations

Joint venture arrangements which
involve the use of assets and other
resources of the Group and other
parties, without the establishment of
a separate entity, are referred to as
jointly-controlled operations. Under
these arrangements, assets remain
under the ownership and control of each
party. Revenue and expenses derived
or incurred in common are shared by
the parties according to the contractual

arrangement.

Assets that the Group controls and the
liabilities that the Group incurs in relation
to the jointly controlled operation are
recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet on an accrual basis and classified
according to the nature of the item. The
expenses that the Group incurs and its
share of income that it earns from the
jointly controlled operation are included

in the consolidated income statement.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the interned reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments has been identified as

the executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated income

statement with “administrative expenses”.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as
equities classified as available-for-sale are
included in the available-for-sale reserve in

equity.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 HMBWE(E)

EELE

(c) Group companies (c)

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at

the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of

equity.

When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in the consolidated income

statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity

and translated at the closing rate.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EETHBREE#®
policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ¥ - BBRREH

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for
buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the
date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
All other property, plant and equipment is stated
at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
reserves in shareholders’ equity. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other reserves directly in equity;
all other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 ¥ BBRREHEE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold 10% or lease term, whichever
improvements is the shorter
Buildings Over the remaining term of the
lease, or 50 years, whichever
is shorter
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each

balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals and determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in other reserves are transferred

to retained earnings.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@

policies (Continued)

2.6 Investment properties 2.6 BEYME
Property that is held for long-term rental yields AESRBHASRERERNEEM
and is not occupied by the Group, is classified as #hE - BYERAEREAZYE
investment properties. DERREWSE -
Investment property is measured initially at its RENFASRENANGTE » B1F
cost, including related transaction costs. HEEZRZ A o
After initial recognition, investment property is RALTERE > BREVERAFE
carried at fair value, representing open market (AL EMEEBEEZAMT
value determined annually by external valuers. Fair B)SER - A FERBEERMSE
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if WEtE  MEZEEMEREE 24
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location B BRI ER L
or condition of the specific asset. If this information o i UL IEER - AIZREKE R
is not available, the Group uses alternative AEMGER L MR ERMES
valuation methods such as recent prices from less ZIMHER SRR S REFRA
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. %o WEMESFEHESERINEG
These valuations are reviewed annually by external B » AP EZEBNEGS WG
valuers, changes in fair values are recorded in the RO o

consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s HERXEEEZIERE BB ZARR
carrying amount only when it is probable that BEF=EURERAREE @ Mz
future economic benefits associated with the BB ZHAREASETER  TRE
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the EZRAEBENR - IEEMEESR
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs RERAEEEZFERARGEU
and maintenance costs are expensed in the wmax RPIVER TR ©

consolidated income statement during the year in

which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner- MRENESHNETER  ERE
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant HMoEAYE WEERRE mA
and equipment, and its fair value at the date of REHPBEBHZAFE B
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting BTS2 AERAK -

purposes.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a
revaluation of property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of
subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is tested for impairment and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose

identified according to operating segment.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
supplier relations have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the supplier relationships, and
recorded in the administrative expenses in the

consolidated financial statements.

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Upon the release of the pre-
recorded audio visual products and the
materials, film rights are amortised at rates
calculated to write off the costs in proportion
to the expected revenues from exhibition,
reproduction and distribution of audio visual
products, the licensing of video rights and
other broadcast rights following their release.
Such rates are on a systematic basis, with
reference to the projected revenue and the
underlying licence periods, and are subject to

annual review by the directors.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(b) Films in progress

(c)

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenue
generated by these films. The balance of film
production costs not yet due at year end are
disclosed as commitments. Costs of films are

transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits.
Film royalty deposits are recognised when
payment was made and the balance payable
under the licensing agreements is disclosed
as a commitment. Upon receipt of the
audio visual products and the materials,
the deposits would be transferred to film
rights and the remaining payable balances
will be recorded as a liability. Provision for
impairment loss is made against deposits to
the extent that film rights will not be received
and the deposit is not recoverable in the

future.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty 28 ERNRE EROEXRETCHE
deposits (Continued) Be (&)
(c) Film royalty deposits (Continued) (c) ERKREZERL (E)
In case where the Group is unable to exercise HMEAERETHEH 0 U
its rights under a licensing agreement BAREEELATHERERZ
because the film producer fails to complete BT 2 REF - A5 E S
the film, the Group writes off the difference RS EAFT AR
between the advances made and the B 502 Z 58 ©
estimated recoverable amount from the film
producer.
At each balance sheet date, both internal and REEEH  AEEGEZRRAE
external market information are considered to ROMFRZHHER  LUFHER
assess whether there is any indication that film B BEPEEREEHREZRER
rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits BERREIERE o & HRBED
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the % BETEEREEZIREME
carrying amount of such assets is assessed and I AR R TERDREEE - LUGE
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised EREZEETREEEE - BERERE
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. BRESWERER o

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries or associates is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary or associate in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets

including goodwill.

B RS R AR B
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2.9

RBLATF  BHELAFIREMBER
EZREREE
REBRERNERAFH 2 EE(WRH
B)BAME  BESFETRENR
Ao BERSEMHAERABARE
BRREETEELRNRD - BY
BEETRER - AF#EE
E BEASEHLRIBANER
R BRI B 7] BE S A U 0 BS S 1T R E
BE o BEBRREE ZREER
HE AU B B3R 2 = 5E T UARERT -
AW EHEUEE 2 D FENRE
ERAAEABEEREZRSES
£ o NEHERER - EERERTE
VYRR ERERESELEN)
ZBRIEBRAES - HRBEZBE
SN2 U BEENS2HRAMA
RER R EEITIRE o

fisl B Ff B 2 ) SR Bt & 13 B WA 2 R
BB EQRNEE X RREIK
REBEz2EKEAEE  HfdZ
EREMERIM B IRE P 2 REE
BHERELAZEEFEH(ERE
B8 RGEMB/RER ZIREE
AREZEREVDREBHEZS

REETRERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #R



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivable and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables”, “pledged
bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 2,10 MBEE(E)

2.10.1 Classification (Continued) 2101545 (&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories.
They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the

balance sheet date.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

() HRHEHBEEE
AHHENBEERF
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BEEAERRT =@
ARHEZERE &
ALt EEES AR
BE -

2102 R R it 2

MBEEZ-REBERS
AR — XZAEAEKH
AABEEZEEZA - HR
B FE N FEARS
RZUMBEE  REDSE
DFENRZEAER &
DNFEFABBRZMBE
ENSROFERR X
SRARGERERA
ER R - ERIREWE
BERBoEANECAHN
HeEER MAKECKHE
BRZAEREKEHRER
BEK MEEENKILRE
Ao AHHENBEERR
DRFEFABBRZMBE
EHEROFEIER EX
K P WK TR 5% A B R R R OE
BHEE R AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #R m



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 2,10 MBEE(E)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued) 2102 EEREE (&)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement, in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are analysed in
equity. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are reclassified to the consolidated income

statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. Available-for-
sale financial assets that were not quoted in
an active market were measured at cost less

impairment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #§

Bz FESFABRR 2
BEE|ER 2R FES

MEEXZBEIAELHE
ZEEWERA - BAFE
SFABRBRRZMBEEZR
B R 37 AN 52 8 I B
H 2 R RS W s R g

.
=3
i ©

N

DTERAUHRHE 2B RIE
ERETEHZZ2AFEHEHNE
HmoN e AHHERATA
Z IR B AR 3L A 5 B W ER X
H 2 BRI RARS WS RE

2.
EOBATHREEZBER
£ SR R - R RS
ZRIATFEBREN B
ERAWEE -

BREBRNRATE 2 # T
ERSAERGFERERE

EHEREZAFERER
RzERENE - LENE
B L REJHEER
BEEZERARBEE -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine
that there is objective evidence of an

impairment loss include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the

issuer or obligor;

° A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

o The Group, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender

would not otherwise consider;

° It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

2 EEg

B RS AR AR B
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 211 MBBEZRE(E)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (a) EBEREINEZETEE)
(Continued)
e  The disappearance of an active market e [HUMBARHERENBE
for that financial asset because of BEZERTEHR &

financial difficulties; or

e  Observable data indicating that there is e HFABRIBERUE
a measurable decrease in the estimated BEMAG 2T ARRR
future cash flows from a portfolio EREBRIIBIZS
of financial assets since the initial ST B v
recognition of those assets, although BRI HEALS K ER
the decrease cannot yet be identified BIREESR 8
with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:
() adverse changes in the payment )y #HEARBRAZ
status of borrowers in the portfolio; fF FAR R 3R
L2 O
(i) national or local economic iy EHEERNEEE
conditions that correlate with RERE R ZE
defaults on the assets in the %ﬁﬁt&g}@ﬁﬁ
portfolio. Lo
The Group first assesses whether objective AEEEETEREFEREZE
evidence of impairment exists. BERE o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EESHBREBE@
policies (Continued)
2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 211 MBBEZRE(E)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (a) EBEREINEZETEE)
(Continued)
The amount of the loss is measured as the BES RS ERE ARG AR
difference between the asset’s carrying AeRE(TaEEREE ZRR

FEBR) RUBEERERAE
MR REMEZEETE - BE
FREEETURD  MEBRSER

amount and the present value of estimated

future cash flows (excluding future credit

losses that have not been incurred) R AL petn o ety sy B
discounted at the financial asset’s original ®IHE B SR AREEE 2 B
effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying BERDGRESNEBEEZRTEEA
amount of the asset is reduced and the Ko EBME L » REB AR
amount of the loss is recognised in the RABRzmERTAZAFER
consolidated income statement. If a loan has BAE -

a variable interest rate, the discount rate for

measuring any impairment loss is the current

effective interest rate determined under the

contract. As a practical expedient, the Group

may measure impairment on the basis of an

instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of R ERARREBESERD

i 5% 2 B %5 465 4t B e SR ORA B 14 B
E2EHER(NEFAGETR
RE) > ABERIZRESRR
Bl R ERE e R TR o

the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

212

2.13

2.14

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the consolidated

balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.

All borrowing costs are expensed off as incurred.

Convertible notes

In accordance with the requirements of HKAS
39, Financial Instruments — Recognition and
Measurement, the convertible note contract has
to be separated into two components, a derivative
component consisting of the conversion option
and a liability component consisting of the straight
debt element of the notes, due to the inclusion of
a conversion price reset mechanism subject to the
market value of the Company’s share on certain
dates, rendering the conversion price and/or the

number of shares to be issued variable.

B RS R AR B
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Convertible notes (Continued)

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair
value of the embedded conversion option was
calculated using the Binomial model. The derivative
component, the embedded conversion option, is
carried at fair value on the balance sheet with any
changes in fair value being charged or credited to
the consolidated income statement in the period
when the change occurs. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the debt element of the
notes, net of transaction costs, and is recorded
as the liability component. The liability component
is subsequently carried at amortised cost until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. Interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate to
the liability component through to the maturity
date.

When the convertible notes are converted, the fair
value of the derivative financial instrument and
the amortised cost of the liability component are
transferred to share capital and share premium
If the

convertible notes are redeemed, any difference

as consideration for the shares issued.

between the amount paid and the carrying
amounts of both components is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designed
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of

the item being hedged.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.19 Derivative financial instruments (Continued) 2,19 FTEMBIARE)

The Group’s derivative instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting and are accounted for at

fair value through profit of loss. Changes in the

REBZOTET AT BERALH
EIEREAFEFARER o 1
HEAYHEEZHENTETA

fair value of these derivative instruments that do ZATVERE  FERFREGRS WS
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised RIER o
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax 2.20 BPRABGEREFR R

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®

policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.20 BPRABGEEFRISIR ()
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the EIEFEHREAEEEMNEENRES
liability method, on temporary differences arising BeHEEENAKGZEEMEHRER 2
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and FHEELE2EREZEERR - A
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial M. WELEMEHREERZ (T
statements. However, the deferred income tax is BREXZEH)PHEERERZ
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition ANLER > MERZBERFEST
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than BERNERBAE » BITMERR -
a business combination that at the time of the EEFSBIERANEE BRIC A
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable NEBEM 0 WEBEZIELERS
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined HEESRNELESHAatEE
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted BRFEHSESEA 2 HRR(FEG)m
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet EE -

date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to EIEFREFREREI LB BERT S
the extent that it is probable that future taxable MAEE e AR E R =R AR
profit will be available against which the temporary TR o

differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided for on temporary ELEFSHMRMB AR ~ BEQ
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, ARAEEEHEECREMEEZ
associated companies and jointly controlled ERFERER M 0 AR B A AR
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of BB R ERE 2 O R MEREE
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group Fa7E N RAS 2R A W RE T = 3 = A BR
and it is probable that the temporary difference will Ih o

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #§



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.21

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The Group has a mandatory provident
fund scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee

service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory or contractual basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

B RS R AR B
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EETEHBREBEw
policies (Continued)

2.22 Share-based payment 2.22 LIk FH&RIE

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the entity
receives services from employees or suppliers as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, including any market performance
conditions, excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions and
excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (nominal value) and share premium
when the options are exercised. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EETHBREEw
policies (Continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities 2.23 BERBRAR

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligations,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 EETHRFEE#)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued) 2.23 BERRRARE)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬁé’kﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ’\‘ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%
BYFEIREE - MR 2 A REE B2

When a change in the probability of an outflow HA s HIRERING - E'Jfﬁﬁluif%?ﬁ
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be & o
recognised as a provision.

2.24 Revenue recognition 2.24 KRR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the W BERAEE R EEKARES
consideration received or receivable for the sale HEERmRRBEWHEWRREZ

of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of

discounts and after eliminating sales within the

DNFAE o W RMBRIT R A
SEEABHERIR -

Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount B EERETUEE  AREER
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable REEF = RABERAS TR
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity SEZEER 2IBEERR  RE

and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues. Channel
supply revenue is recognised on a straight
line basis over the contract periods which
generally coincide with when the relevant

channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the

right to receive payment is established.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of audio visual products, video features and
TV rights is recognised upon delivery of the
pre-recorded audio visual products and the
materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers in accordance

with the terms of the contracts.

Revenue from the sale and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the

interest rates applicable.

Distribution commission income from royalty

rights is recognised on an accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.

Management fee income is recognised when

services are rendered.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

(i) The Group as lessee
The group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the

minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged
to the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset and the lease

term.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE e B

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.25 Leases (Continued) 2.25 N(E

(ii) The Group as lessor
When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in the
balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.

Lease income is recognised over the term of

the lease on a straight-line basis.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders.

2.27 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf
of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,

overdrafts and other banking facilities.

2.26
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.27 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by the judgement of management.
The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is

reported in the consolidated income statement.

3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk, and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, Singapore and Japan and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Singapore
dollar (SGD) and Japanese Yen (JPY).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments

in foreign operations.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk primarily with respect to JPY.
Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s operations
is managed primarily through sourcing
suppliers denominated in the same
foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to JPY is not significant as
the functional currency of the respective

foreign operation is also JPY.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31st March 2010, if HK dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
Singapore dollars with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$2,421,000
higher/lower (2009: post-tax loss would
have been HK$1,689,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of receipts
in advance denominated in Singapore

dollars.

The Group minimised its other currency
risk by denominating majority of its
foreign currency transactions in United
States dollars, which is pegged with
Hong Kong dollar at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of

foreign currency rate is limited.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies

its portfolio.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Price risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. As at 31st March
2010, if the share prices of the equity
securities of the Group had increased/
decreased by 5%, the post-tax
profit of the Group would have been
approximately HK$2,506,000 higher/
lower (2009: post-tax loss would have
been approximately HK$1,124,000
lower/higher) and the equity of the
Group would have been approximately
HK$4,760,000 higher/lower (2009:
approximately HK$2,033,000 higher/

lower), respectively.

Post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease as a result of gains/
losses on equity securities classified
as at fair value through profit or loss.
The gains/losses on equity securities
classified as available for sale would
increase/decrease the available-for-
sale financial assets revaluation reserve

within equity.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRER®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMEREERE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HEmE (&)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group had cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
such balances in these institutions on
various maturities and interest rate
terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held
at variable rates. Details of the Group’s
borrowing have been disclosed in Note
30(a).

If the interest rate had gone up/down
by 50 basis point, the pre-tax profit of
the Group would have been HK$151,500
lower/higher (2009: pre-tax loss would
have been HK$112,000 higher/lower).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk was managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents as well as credit exposures to
customers, including outstanding receivables
and committed transactions, and other
debtors. The Group only places deposits in
reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivable through the application of
credit approvals, credit rating and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit
histories.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light
of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, management
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above balance requires for working
capital management are transferred to the
Group treasury. Group treasury invests
surplus cash in interest bearing current
accounts, times deposits, choosing
instruments with appropriate maturities or
sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient hear-
room as determined by the Group. At the
reporting date, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$24,628,000 (2009:
HK$56,620,000), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$50,124,000 (2009:
HK$22,476,000) and other current assets of
HK$43,745,000 (2009: HK$75,657,000) that
are expected to readily generate cash inflows
for managing liquidity risk.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMBERARER#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBERERGE
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRERREERARAT 2

M A ERREE2EHAE
B BEREERESNE
B ZREHEETON -

Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining

period at the balance sheet date to the

contractual maturity date. The amounts RAWRBE2SBEABEHRE
disclosed in the table are the contractual ReBHERE c HREERZ
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within HERK - HARAT=Z@AR
12 months equal their carrying balances, as 2 &R EERERE
the impact of discounting is not significant. =)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
—FR —EmF MELF AFEYME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Group AEE
At 31st March 2010 AZE—BF
=A=+—H
Trade and other B 5 RHEMER
payables IE 14,790 - - —
Obligations under il & A A RIE
finance leases 3,164 — = =
Borrowings BE 21,016 3,318 9,442 9,811
At 31st March 2009 AZBBAF
=RA=+—H
Trade and other B 5 R HMERS
payables I8 6,249 - - —
Obligations under Rl E AL R
finance leases 3,964 3,164 — =
Borrowings =g 22,399 = = =
Convertible notes and AR =5
derivative financial PTEMETA
instruments 20,400 = = =
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERKRERZ)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBERERGE
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELEEE(E)
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years

—ER —EmE MELF AFERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Company ENF
At 31st March 2010 R_S—BF

=B=+—H
Other payables H At BRI 58 — — —
At 31st March 2009 A_ZThE

=RA=+—AH
Other payables H A0 RS FRIE 494 — — =
Convertible notes R IREE 20,400 = = —

(d) Fair value estimation (d) XFEMGE

The fair value of financial instruments traded TERBMSZEEZMEITA
in active markets (such as available-for-sale (A HEERZRAFEFTA
and fair value through profit or loss securities) BRkeEF) 2ATEDR
is based on quoted market prices at the HEHZ2MEREIER - &
balance sheet date. The quoted market price SEEECHMBEEMAZ
used for financial assets held by the Group TEREAERERE -

was the current bid price.

Available-for-sale financial assets that were I IEFAE R T H|WE 2 7] i
not quoted in an active market were measured o B 35 B 2 T iR R AN 11 BR
at cost less impairment. WEETE ©
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)
Effective 1st January 2009, the Group
adopted the amendment to HKFRS 7 for
financial instruments that are measured in
the balance sheet at fair value, this requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

(level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices) (level 2).
° Inputs for the asset or liability that are

not based on observable market data

(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

3 HMERKRERZ)
HERBER(F)
DFEEE (E)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued) (d)

The following table presents the group’s
assets that are measured at fair value at 31st
March 2010:

Assets BE
BAFEFAEBRRZUHE

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

— Trading securities — RZA%ES
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENKEE

— Equity securities — BRAFH S
Total assets BB E

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level
1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments listed in Hong
Kong and United Kingdom classified as

trading securities or available for sale.

TREJIR=-Z-ZF=H
=t-BRLQVEFEZR
SEEE :

Level 1
2010
F—ik
—s-%%
HK$’000
T

50,124

45,086

95,210

HERTS LEE BT
BZRFEDEREERZ
MEHRENE - HHRETE
SGHRERERZHM X5
B RE TEEE EE
RFHEERBIISHRE
M 5% 5 B A& R BR LA 2 7 R A
BERERTRETZHER
% AlZmsRERER-
AEBEFFEMBEEERM
ZHEHRERENELE-
ZETAFAE -5t A
E-R2ITETERERE
BRREETEDEBRS
AEEFHAHREEZRA
BE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

3 HMERKRERZ)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBERERGE

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued) (d) 2FEEE(E)
The carrying value less impairment of HNE S R HMEKRRRIE -
trade and other receivables, cash and cash ReRZRERELER - BEE
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade RIETER EZRHEME
and other payables, convertible notes and RIE - TEREERES
borrowings are assumed to approximate their RERZIE  MEREDE
fair values due to their short maturities. MR EREHEE N FEHE

E

(e) Capital risk management (e) EZXREEE

The Group’s objectives when managing AEEERERAZBEAR

capital were to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for the shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to the shareholders, return
capital to the shareholders, issue new shares
or convertible instruments, or sell assets to

reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total

borrowings divided by shareholders’ funds.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(e) Capital risk management (Continued)
The Group’s strategy is to maintain the
gearing ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios
at 31st March 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

Bank loans and overdrafts IRITERRES
(Note 30(a)) (KtaE30(a)

Obligations under finance leases &l & fH 4 H&iE
(Note 30(b)) (Btz£ 30(b))

Convertible notes and derivative — AJ# 8 215 & £74 Bt
financial instruments (Note 31) BIE(#aEE31)

Total borrowings &%
Shareholders’ funds BRRES
Gearing ratio BEEEE

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the
year ended 31st March 2010 was mainly due
to the repayment of convertible notes and the

expiry of derivative financial instruments.

B RS R AR B

MERBRER @)
3.1 HMEBERBERE
(e) EBFRMEBEE(E)
TEBZEMARIZEEE
AL EEPR20% c R = F
—ZEER-_ZFZENNF=A
=t+—-BZEEEELEN

T
2010 2009
—s-%% —2ENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
39,671 22,387
3,023 6,700
- 19,440
42,694 48,527
412,686 337,416
10.3% 14.4%

BE-ZT-—ZTF=A=1+-—
BLEFEZBEEEL R
OSPHERRREEATRRE
B R AOTE M T B R A
B o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and

are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

41

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are discussed below:

(a) Impairment of film rights, films in progress

and film royalty deposits

As set out in note 2.8, impairment
assessments on film rights, films in progress
and film royalty deposits are performed at
each balance sheet date with reference to
both internal and external market information,
for example, sales forecast based on
expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sale, and the general economic condition
of the relevant markets. As at 31st March
2010, the carrying value of film rights, films in
progress, and film royalty deposits amounted
to approximately HK$74,198,000 (2009:
HK$55,582,000).

used in this assessment,

Changes in assumptions
including the
forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated

financial statements.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

4 MRBEAFRAE=)

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 41 FRSEHERER(E
(Continued)
(b) Provision for impairment of trade and other (b) E5REMELHEREZ
receivables (Continued) & (&)

The provisioning policy for trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the
evaluation of the collectability of those
receivables and on management’s judgement.
As at 31st March 2010, the trade and other
receivables, net of provision, amounted to
HK$36,794,000 (2009: HK$68,712,000).
A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and the realisation
of any repayment pattern promised. If the
financial conditions of these customers were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional

provision may be required.

TEBE SR EMEKRRIE
ZREBRRDUEZESER
FRIE A U (B M4 2 FR A R
BEEBZHEAER K=
T-—ZEF=A=+-HA ¥
5 & H i F& Uk 3118 (30 BR3¢
& ) %36,794,00058 jt(=
Z T A £ 68,712,000
)o I EZERBRIEZ
RATEBMBEEEELEA
B¥E EESERFZA
AfEBRBAERRLHE U
REMEERFERERNES
B ZEEF ZHHR
MEE S BYHHNRENH
& > BIRTRER ERRIMRIE -

Al

al
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

441

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill and contractual
supplier relationships

The Group tests whether goodwill and
contractual supplier relationships have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2.7. The
recoverable amounts of these intangible
assets have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates. The determination of
the key assumptions, including the annual
revenue growth rate, the discount rate,
requires significant amount of judgement.
Had the expected revenue growth rate and
the pre-tax discount rate applied to the
discounted cash flow been different from the
management’s estimate, such difference may
affect the results of management’s impairment
assessment. Key assumptions used by
management in assessing the impairment of

goodwill have been included in note 15.
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

41

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(d) Valuation of investment properties and
buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current
prices in an active market for similar leases
and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair values
estimated. In making its estimates, the Group
considers the information from the valuations
of investment properties and buildings
performed by external professional valuers by
using the open market value approach. Had
the Group used different valuation techniques,
the fair value of the investment properties and
buildings would be different and thus may
have an impact to the consolidated financial

statements.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s

accounting policies

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such

determination is made.

B RS R AR B

4 MRBEFGERAE=)

41 FRFHEHRMAERGE
(d) REMEREFEE

NFPEZHERERHELAE
ENEMENRERTSH
ZBRITER - HWRZBBE
#AEEKSIESHEERE
HEEEBEzZ2AFEMEE
W RYEH TR AEE
ZREIINBERMEER U AF
mEEEETZRENER
BFHEMSER - XK
BERATRMGES L RE
MERBFZAFEEER
B - A B AR S B A HR R
BRFE -

4.2 ERAREEHBRZMEIER

Friz iR
AEBEARAEEEEME 2 BE
REMARTER EEEHREHE
BREZEMAEERE 2 EH - R
AEXBBRETAESZRERER
RBEZRGRAE - AREKRE
EERRBESREIE G
MERENHEENRE2AE -
SRR 2 RARBEREND
ik EHEAR - IEEEZERS
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

5 Revenues and segment information 5 KERSEHBEH
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: FREIRZOT :
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue &
Television operations EIREK 104,130 84,487
Film exhibition and film rights EXHMRREZRERER
licensing and sub-licensing B 10,845 62,839
Sale and distribution of films N EERFEAEERET
and programs in audio visual ZEZREH
product format 38,387 44,233
153,362 191,559
Other income HAtg A
Rental income from investment REYEHRESWA
properties 7,064 6,449
Other rental income HaES WA 4,926 8,989
Distribution commission income BITHSWA 3,731 2,884
Others Hh 2,718 3,579
18,439 21,901
Total revenues g 171,801 213,460
The chief operating decision maker has been identified AEBFHTEEERATELERSE
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Directors E EBEFHAER 2 AR E LG
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess XBERIMER - EECREBEAEEZ
performance and allocate resources. The Directors AR EEELE DD ©

have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group operates BE-Z-ZF=ZA=+—HLFE

in four business segments: REBZMAREB DA

—  Television operations — EBRE®

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub- — BEHMRESMERLDRER
licensing

— Sale and distribution of films and programs in — HUETERFAHERRITZEY
audio visual product format Sa:E

—  Property investment — YIERE
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

5 Revenues and segment information 5 WaRoBEHE)
(Continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2010 REIEXBE S 2BE-_ZT—TF=
by each principal activity is as follows: B=1T—HILFEERIHEEWNT :

Year ended 31st March 2010
BECE-SECR=T-RLEE

Sale and

distribution

Film of films and
exhibition and programs in
film rights audio visual

licensing and product format

Television sublicensing  UFEE&MS Property
operations  EFHMREFME HERBZ investment Elimination Group
LUEE RHiRES EYREHA LELT o 550
HK§:000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note (b))
(W )
Externalsales Whee 104,130 10845 38,387 - - 153,362
Inter-segment sales AmHE - 4,504 - - (4504 -
Segment revenue k6 104,130 15,349 38,387 - (4,504 153,362
Reportable segment profit 2RI FER 15,444 1,512 1,676 29,205 1,718 49,63
Reportable segqment assets TERABEE 53,537 46,564 84,001 132,719 (1,797 315,174
Reportable segment iablties 1287088 (19,889) (20,281) (38,797) (20,775) - (99,736)
Depreciation and amortisation for 4%+ BERRERAS L)
property, plant and equipmentand  REEREZAER
leasehold land and land use rights (1,044) (54) (597) - - (1,695)
Amartisation for fim rights EMERH (28711) (2,980) (6,79) - 6,281 (3226
Provision for impaiment of fim rights ~ SZ/REHES - (1,763) (192 - - (2.555)
Additions to property, plant and RENE  BERGE
equipment 48 4 52 - - 515
Additions to investment properties  FEREE - - - 17,133 - 17,133
Additions to film ights, fims in FEEYRE FEYEY
progress and fim royalty deposits ~ EZifiERS 40,863 9,765 7,264 - (4504 53,388
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

5 Revenues and segment information 5 RERSHBEH=)
(Continued)

Year ended 31st March 2009
BECEENFCRCt-ALEE

Sale and

distribution

Film of ilms and
exhibition and programs in
film rights audio visual

licensing and product format

Television sudcensng  UFEERFA Property
operations  EZHRREY e HERRL investment Elmination Group
Bt RHRER EIRHE U 45 F5E
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
i1 &1 i1 &1 i1 &1
(note (b)
(K )
Revenue from extemal customers—— AIEF & 84,487 62,839 44,3 - - 191,559
Inter-segment revenug ARk - 10450 - - (10450) =
Segment revenue kG 84,487 73,289 44233 - (10,450) 191,559
Reportable seqment (oss)proft ~ T2AH(EE) /47 (1875 4163 (27.067) 54 o1 (41989
Reportable segment assets BEE Vit 39,108 42,764 132,976 93,892 (3,531) 305,209
Reportable segment iablties BEE VRS (16,721) (34,742) (33,449) (0,603) - (94,515)
Depreciation and amortisation for 4%+ BERRERAS L)
property, plant and equipmentand ~ REEREZAER
leasehold land and land use rights %2 (656) @ (671) - - (1,354)
Amortisation fo fim rights EXmERY (30,824) (22,134) [9587) - 9587 (53,008)
Provision for impaiment of fim rights ~ EZERERE - (4:108) [402) - - (4,507)
Provision for impairment of trade BARNHEHERR
feceivables - - 0514 - - 0514
Amortsation of ntanglole assets BREERY (419) - (4,000) - - (4,419)
Provision for impaiment of ANLERERIERR
contractual supplier relationship (4,610) - - - - (4,610)
Provision for impament of goodwill ~ EEFERE (22,413 - - - - (22,413
Addtions to property, plant and RENE  BERGE
equipment 184 160 5 - - 997
Additions to fim rights, fims in FERENE RETEY
progress and film royalty deposits ~ EZERS 26,831 - 11,930 - (10450) 28,311
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenues and segment information
(Continued)

(a)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment
profit that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax

expense is not allocated to reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income
tax, excluding unallocated share of results of
associated companies, other income, finance
costs, depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land and land
use rights that are used by all segments and other
corporate expenses (mainly including staff costs
and other general administrative expenses) of the

head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in
associated companies, available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents and unallocated corporate assets
(mainly including property, plant and equipment
and leasehold land and land use rights that are

used by all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current
income tax liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities
and unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly

including accrued charges of the head office).

B RS R AR B
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

5 Revenues and segment information

(Continued)

(b) The revenue attributable to the segment “property

investment” has been included in other income.

(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities are reconciled to results and total assets

and total liabilities of the Group as follows:

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a

percentage of profit mark-up.

Profit or loss

Reportable segment profit/(loss)
Unallocated amounts:
Unallocated other income
Unallocated other gains/
(losses) — net
Unallocated finance costs —
net
Depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and
equipment and leasehold
land and land use rights
Share of results of associated
companies
Unallocated corporate

expenses

Profit/(loss) before income tax
per consolidated income
statement
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2010 2009
—E—2F =
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
49,635 (41,988)
2,603 4,800
21,416 (1,358)
(1,939) (6,571)
(7,243) (6,693)
- (1,570)
(4,633) (22,655)
59,839 (76,035)




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE e B

5 Revenues and segment information

5 IN@R9EBEE =)

(Continued)
(c) (Continued)
Assets
Reportable segment assets AZ2|MAHEE
Unallocated assets: RABEE :
Unallocated leasehold land ROBHEE L 2 - HifE
and land use rights and RAEREF

buildings

Unallocated available-for-sale
financial assets

Unallocated financial assets at

AOMABHENBEEE

AABRAFEFAER

fair value through R2UMBEE
profit or loss
Unallocated cash and cash ROBGEERERREE
equivalents B
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE
Total assets per consolidated REEEEBRMYIIZAE
balance sheet =3
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities AE2|AHEE
Unallocated liabilities: KRAOBEE :
Unallocated bank borrowings ROBIRITIEE
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ko Bl EE

Total liabilities per consolidated #H&&EEERF 2

balance sheet RS =R

(#)

wE
2010 2009
—E-BF —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
315,174 305,209
121,894 96,788
45,086 18,180
50,124 22,476
802 49
9,993 31,649
543,073 474,351

AR
2010 2009
—E—S% —EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
99,736 94,515
26,330 17,307
1,887 24,848
127,953 136,670
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

5 Revenues and segment information 5 KERSEBEH =)
(Continued)
(c) (Continued) (c) (#&)
The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The result 288 b ESREB M o HURE
of its revenue from external customers and non- BRHAMER IR ERER
current assets other than financial instruments FHEE(METARELERNEE
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong and ERN AT

other countries are summarised below:

Non-current assets

Revenue from (other than financial
external customers instruments)
SEBERKS ERENEE (MBI ARSI
2010 2009 2010 2009
—ETFE _—_ZTTNE IZE-TF _—ZTINEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FET
Hong Kong &8 95,834 153,622 269,481 244,553
Singapore 1 h03 47,650 32,070 - -
People’s Republic of REARLANE
China - — 64,400 12,646
Other countries HE =R 9,878 5,867 2,092 719
153,362 191,559 335,973 257,918
Revenue generated from external customers from EXBHMERITERE 2WEE
other countries is mainly revenue from television EREREKWES
operations.
Revenues of approximately HK$52,146,000 Y &= #52,146,0008 1t K&
and HK$47,650,000 (2009: HK$50,094,000 47,650,000 T(= & F N F :
and HK$31,485,000) are derived from two 50,094,000 % Jt & 31,485,000 &
single external customers. These revenues are TNREMBE—IIBES ° %
attributable to the television operations segment. ZWRHRDIREEREH D o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

6 Other gains/(losses) — net 6 HMS (K| — 28
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value gain on derivative PTHEMBIA 2 AFERS
financial instrument (note 31) (Bt 31) 36 13,951
Loss on repurchase of convertible BB A # R 245 > 518
notes (note 31) (H1a£31) - (544)
Surplus/(deficits) on revaluation of R&EYEE (LR (EHE)
investment properties (note 16) (HtaE 16) 22,504 (11,335)
Deficit on revaluation of building BFREMEL(HEFE 140))
(note 14(i) (87) —
Fair value gains/(losses) on RAFEFABRRZMBEE
financial assets at fair value ZAFERE S (EBE)
through profit or loss (note 23(b)) (/172 23(b)) 21,467 (14,765)
43,920 (12,693)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYEREEBRAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

7 Expenses by nature 7 BREHISZHAX
FTAHERS HERMIGHERERX
THAZZEZIMAOT

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

2010 2009
=5 —EZNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories (note 24) TFE A (Kiat24) 6,430 8,053
Depreciation (note 14) e (HfaF 14)
— owned property, plant and — BEWE  HBRREXE
equipment 5,520 4,834
— leased property, plant and — HEYE - HEERFBE
equipment 2,863 2,889
Amortisation of intangible assets & = #i 6 ([ 15)
(note 15) - 4,419
Amortisation of leasehold land and  FH& - i [ - ith {85 F A2 48 65
land use rights (note 13) (BtaE13) 555 324
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) &£/ fRiEE s (fizt 17) 32,262 53,008
Provision for impairment of EHHERBERRERE
contractual supplier relationships (/37 15)
(note 15) - 4,610
Provision for impairment of film B MR ERE
rights (note 17) (et 17) 2,555 4,507
Provision for impairment of trade £ 5 EWFE R EREE
receivables (note 25) (BtaE25) - 9,514
Provision for impairment of amount JE Ui I [5]4% 4 S 82 ZOE R E B
due from a jointly controlled (K1EE 19(a))
entity (note 19(a)) - 443

(Reversal of)/provision for FEUEE N B FOERE (BE),

impairment of amount due from & (1 18)

an associated company (note 18) (1,780) 14,740
Provision for impairment of AR EMKEEERERE

available-for-sale financial assets (/7% 23(a))

(note 23(a)) - 625
Provision for obsolescence of BREFERME (Ht24)

inventories (note 24) 487 3,237
Loss on disposal of film rights HESEMEZEE

(note 17) (Bt 17) - 164
Employee benefit expenses EEGABEXZ(BEESHE)

(including directors’ emoluments)  (ffi# 12)

(note 12) 25,065 21,801
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN &

— current year — REE 1,295 1,350

— (over)/under provision in prior — BEFE(BERE) B

years BrRE (18) 70

Direct operating expenses arising E£EHAESWA 2B EYZEEE

from investment properties that ZEHELERY

generate rental income (note 16) (HiaZ 16) 987 883
Theatrical costs BB B AR 2,938 25,441
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 Finance costs — net

Finance income

— Interest income on short-term

bank deposits

— Interest income on loans to
third parties

— Unwinding of discount
in respect of non-current

receivables

Finance cost
— Interest on loans and
overdrafts
— Interest element of finance
leases
— Interest accretion in respect
of convertible notes wholly

repayable within five years

Finance costs — net

BE WA
— BHRTERZFE2RA

— ABE=FERZFEWA

— FREBEUGKIRIT R E

BE A
— RITERREXZHE

— BMERY 2SS

— ARLFREHEEZ
AR R REE 2 A E

BMEMAE — FH

B RS R AR B

MERE — B8
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FAET
168 1,935
1,237 933
- 476
1,405 3,344
(938) (627)
(287) (425)
(2,210) (7,362)
(3,435) (8,414)
(2,030) (5,070)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

9 Income tax expense/(credit) 9 FisMAX (E&)
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate EBANEBHERBARFEE AT ERBF
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable HUBZE16.5% (ZZEZNF : 16.5%)
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been {E 15 o BN FE 2 B R Bl iz R AR &
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the & 14 51 FE SR T I R 4 2N £ [ AR & SE RS A
year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in ERERZBRITRETH -

which the Group operates.

2010 2009
—E—-EF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Current income tax — Hong Kong  ENEJFF5H — HEMEFR

profits tax 4,014 370
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBERE (222) —
Deferred income tax (note 33) IERE PS8 (M2 33) 3,839 (4,432)
7,631 (4,062)
The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax REBZRFEHRADER, (EE) 25
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise BHHEF AR ERERNE A MELZSH

using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits REAZEGESEME[D 2ZHUT ¢

of the consolidated entities as follows:
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR B

9 Income tax expense/(credit) (Continued) 9 FieMEX% (B%R)#
2010 2009
—E—-ZFf —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREF SR ADEF, (E518) 59,839 (76,035)
Tax calculated at domestic tax REBEXREF,(FE)BEAR
rates applicable to profits/(loss) B R ETE 2 HIE
in the respective countries 8,714 (13,388)
Tax effects of: DTREZHIESE :
Income not subject to tax BERBUBA (1,196) (1,412)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 0B B
purposes 1,101 11,216
Tax losses for which no deferred WRERELERESHEEZ
income tax assets were FHIEEIE
recognised 4,881 4,853
Over-provision in prior year BWIFEBIERE (222) =
Utilisation of previously By A R ERBIIEE B
unrecognised tax losses (5,647) (5,331)
Income tax expense/(credit) FIEHiRx (Kk) 7,631 (4,062)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15% MEFIPEABRRREI5% (ZFTFN
(2009: 18%). F118%) °
10 Loss attributable to equity holders of 10. FAFRBHBEAREBR

the Company
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company ERADAMBRERER 2R QAR
HEABEEERR 4,234,000 8T (=%

ZNE %= 5,713,000 7T) °

is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HK$4,234,000 (2009: profit of
HK$5,713,000).
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

11

Profit/(loss) per share

Basic profit per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$51,965,000 (2009: loss of HK$71,529,000) by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,910,455,000 (2009: 4,910,455,000 (note a)) in issue
during the year.

Diluted profit/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The company has two categories of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible debt and
share options. The convertible debt is assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit
is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less the tax
effect. For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual
market share price of the company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options. The number of shares
calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the

exercise of the share options.

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the diluted profit
per share was the same as the basic profit per share as
the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible
notes during the year would be anti-dilutive.

For the year ended 31st March 2009, the diluted loss per
share was the same as the basic loss per share as the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible

notes and options would be anti-dilutive.
Note a: The basic and diluted loss per share for 2009
presented above is adjusted to reflect the Share
Subdivision in the current year (note 27(a)).
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sEEH (BR)

ERERRF J"J?EZK"WEE%%EME
b5 51,965,000 B T (ZFFENF
E5#871,529,00078 7T ) RUAF A B 1T
38 IR N FE 1920 4,910,455,000 iR (=
T E R F :4,910,455,000 f% (Fff 5Ea))
aTHE o

BREBERF (BB HEAES &%

BERMEFOHERRALFAESH
EEEEER AR EMAHEER
Lﬂﬁ CARREERBRE - TRKR
ERBRRCEAZBR/EER - MAFA
SRELUKENSANABBZE -
BREDBREBERTEBREMMESTRE
BzEBEENE  UBEETRAFE
(BAEQXFARBZEFFIIRDHEE
BREE)WBZROHE - MG
AEZBROBESRBRERERTRE
MET 2R BB LR -

BE_Z-ZF=-A=1t—-HLFE"
HRABFRRQARRTEARBRRE
AR@ETE HERBERNESR
EXRBAER -

BE-ZZNF=A=+—HLEE"
HRARBAQBRRTEARREZERE
RREAREEER  MEREBEHEHE
FREREEMER -

Pi—FEZhEEREARHE

BEECKRABURRANFE
Z BB A (FfEE27(a)) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Employee benefit expenses (including

directors’ emoluments)

Wages and salaries IERHS
Pension costs — defined BRURERA — RAE
contribution plans MG E

(a) Directors’ emoluments
The remuneration of all directors for the year ended
31st March 2010 and 2009 is set out below:

12

B RS AR AR B

EEEFAZ(BEESHE)

2010 2009
—E—EF —ETAEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
24,556 21,332
509 469
25,065 21,801
(a) E=B<

HE_Z-ZHEK_ZTNF=A
=t—-RLFEERNTEEESZ

eI T
2010 2009
= ki
Other Other
emoluments- emoluments-
basic salaries, Pension hasic salaries, Pension
allowances and costs-defined allowances and costs-defined
other benefits contribution other benefits contribution
Fees in kind plans Total Fees in kind plans Total
Afbe - Hfte —
Eshe 3% BKeHF - BAGS BE  BAGHA-—
e REMEWHE  REAKHY &t e REMENAE  REEHHE 3t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAL FAT FAT FAL
Executive directors UiTEs
Li Kuo Hsing SEE - 3810 12 3822 - 3744 1 3756
Tong Hing Chi BER - 1,295 12 1,307 - 1,251 1 1,263
Chau Kei Leung BER - 5 12 i = 686 12 69
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Chan Ngan Piu RiEs % - - % % - - %
Hugo Shong it 10 - - 10 10 - - 10
Independent non- BUUTES
executive directors
Lee G. Lam H5E 10 - - 10 10 - - 10
Wang Huarong I#5 10 - - 10 10 - - 10
Cheung Ming Man REY 0 - - 10 10 - - 10
376 5820 3 6,232 376 5,681 3% 6,093

None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st
March 2009 and 2010.

MEEENEBE_STEANEFR_Z—
EEZRA=t-HUEFEZEAME -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFAX(BREFEHL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (&
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) RfEEEFHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2009: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
two (2009: two) individuals during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and &7 4 - 2L R
other benefits in kind Hih B YRz

Pension costs — defined BREHRA — RE
contribution plans HERET S

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 & 7T
— 2,000,000 & 7T

During the years ended 31st March 2010 and 31st
March 2009, no emoluments have been paid by
the Group to the three (2009: three) directors or
the two (2009: two) highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join the Group, or as compensation

for loss of office.
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FR AEBREUESHMAL
hZR(ZBEAF ZR)ARE
= HMSFHBERLXE5ZS
WIRBR - FRENREN T HBER
B(ZEZhF MB)BRSHMA
TMEemT :

Z# T — 1,000,000 T

2010 2009

—F—EF —ETNEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FRT T

1,880 1,303

12 24

1,892 1,327
MEgEENT

Number of individuals

AR
2010 2009
—E—8% —EENF
1 2
1 —_
2 2

BE_Z-ZEF=A=+—HK=
ZENF=ZA=+—HLEFE &K
EEYEO=F(ZTEAF: =
B)EEEIME(ZZZTNAFE W
B)BREFMATZAME  EH
MAREE z RBRFERBBE
& o



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFAX(BREFEHL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (&

(c)

(d)

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension scheme arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$5,000 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until
the employee reaches the retirement age of 65
subject to certain exceptions. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The
total contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the
Group during the year amounted to HK$436,000
(2009: HK$396,000).

(c)

(d)

B & B R
REBCHS(BRESHE) D
HEFELESEREMTH KB
kBH URKE2EXAZME
X TESFEHR -

B R EIRE

AEBRBERBESMEABSS
RGBS 2% D AE
EREIRMAGEAEESTE
([RESFTE ] - RIFRE ST
2 AEEzHERIZRBESE
RGP R E 2 EEHEBIW A 5% 5
E EAEBEES HB1,0008
o MEEZHEBRABRRBEA
5,000t » Bl ERAMRES
FTEMEHAEESREE B - BRET
BISMER SN - sREIEEFRTEE 2
2EEFIGETRE  HEEESF
[E65mBNRFR AL - BEEET
B EERAEECEESH  #H
SEBCESBNER c £ A
SEERESHEFEL 2 HRE
¥ 5436,0008 T(ZEENF
396,000/ T) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EARFAX(BREFEHL)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (&

(d)

Pension scheme arrangement (Continued)

The Group also contributes to a defined
contribution retirement scheme (the “Retirement
Scheme”) which provides retirement benefits to
its employees who joined the Group prior to the
adoption of the MPF Scheme and chose not to join
the MPF Scheme after its adoption. The Retirement
Scheme’s assets are held in a provident fund (the
“Fund”) managed by an independent administrator.
Under the Retirement Scheme, both the employer
and the employees are required to contribute
5% of the basic salary of the employees (up to a
maximum of HK$1,000 per employee) on a monthly
basis. The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s contribution after 10 years of completed
service, or at a reduced scale of between 20%
and 90% after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service,
in which case the forfeited contributions are to
be used to reduce the employer’s contributions.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay the related employee
benefits. The aggregate employer’s contributions,
net of forfeited contributions, which have been
dealt with in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31st March 2010 amounted to
HK$73,000 (2009: HK$73,000).

As at 31st March 2010, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme
and contributions totalling HK$73,000 (2009:
HK$71,000) and HK$12,000 (2009: HK$12,000)
payable to the MPF Scheme and the Retirement
Scheme respectively were included in payable in

the consolidated balance sheet.
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BHBIREEE)

REE R EREMRFEKRET (TR
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REEMEB ST A MEAREEE
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R-ZE-—ZFF=A=+—H I8
A iR A AR 15 R IR Bl 2 R R it
MZRWBER > maEELsTE
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

13 Leasehold land and land use rights — 13 #HETHRTERE — F
Group £H
The movement of leasehold land and land use rights are HELHE T RAEZZEMT :
as follows:
2010 2009
—E—-ZFf —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 REZBZNFER=ZZENF
MA—H 11,946 12,270
Additions 0 20,634 —
Amortisation of leasehold land TS+ i K% & 2t {58 PR R 4 £
and land use rights (note 7) (Btz£7) (555) (324)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 REZE-ZER-ZZBBNF
=B=+—AH 32,025 11,946
The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use AEEREE LK 1+ i F AR B
rights represents prepaid operating lease payments and EAMNKERORER HRENFES
their net book values are analysed as follows: LU
2010 2009
—E-ZF —E2NEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Held on leases of between 10 RTER+E2HOER
to 50 years
In Hong Kong REB 11,624 11,946
Outside Hong Kong REBIEIN 20,401 —
32,025 11,946
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group 14 Y% - BRERE — T5KE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
R RE
#F HENRRE REfH RE #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx FET FEn FEn FiEx
At 1st April 2008 RZSZN\EMA—A
Cost or valuation KA EE 104,430 13,050 28,383 5,745 151,608
Accumulated depreciation 2t E - (7,039) (11,652) (4,649) (23,340)
Net book amount REFE 104,430 6,011 16,731 1,096 128,268
Year ended 31st March 2009 HE-ZEHE
ZREt-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 104,430 6,011 16,731 1,096 128,268
Additions 10 - 1,080 1,149 - 2,229
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAR
(note 38(b)) (B 38(b) - 331 426 = 757
Depreciation (note 7) WEMHT) (2,142) (1,312) (3,794) (475) (7,729)
Revaluation surplus EfiBE 3,440 - - - 3,440
Transferred to investment BRERENE(HHg)
properties (note g) (20,886) - - - (20,886)
Exchange differences ERZER - 22 22 - 44
Closing net book amount ERRETE 84,842 6,132 14,534 621 106,129
At 31st March 2009 RZZBHE
=A=+-H
Cost or valuation KA E 84,842 14,599 30,595 5,745 135,781
Accumulated depreciation ZE - (8,467) (16,061) (5,124) (29,652)
Net book amount REFE 84,842 6,132 14,534 621 106,129
Year ended 31st March 2010 HE-E—Z&
ZRA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 84,842 6,132 14,534 621 106,129
Additions i 9,876 18 674 - 10,568
Depreciation (note 7) wEMH7) (2,344) (1,446) (4,178) (415) (8,383)
Revaluation deficit B4 (2,505) - - - (2,505)
Exchange differences ERER - 23 20 - 43
Closing net book amount EREEFE 89,869 4,727 11,050 206 105,852
At 31st March 2010 R-B-Z%
=R=+-H
Cost or valuation ARG fE(E 89,869 14,648 31,320 4,347 140,184
Accumulated depreciation 2 E = (9,921) (20,270) (4,141) (34,332)
Net book amount REFE 89,869 4,727 11,050 206 105,852
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Certain leasehold land and land use rights
(note 13) and buildings of the Group situated
in Hong Kong are held by the Group under a
lease agreement dated 25th August 1997 with
the Hong Kong Industrial Estates Corporation
(“HKIEC”) which restricts the usage of the premise
to the manufacture of optical discs and related
business. The Group’s interests in the buildings are
transferable subject to the right of first refusal to
purchase by HKIEC.

Accordingly, the buildings were last revaluated
on 31st March 2010 by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer, on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
which is the aggregate of the land value in its
existing use and the estimated replacement costs
of the buildings. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve in shareholder’s
equity (note 28(a)). HKIEC merged with two other
corporations in 2001 and is presently known
as Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks

Corporation.

The carrying amount of the buildings would have
been HK$89,228,000 (2009: HK$81,722,000)
had they been stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation.

At 31st March 2010, the buildings with carrying
value of HK$80,192,000 (2009: HK$84,842,000)
were pledged as security for banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 30(a)).

B RS R AR B

14 YR - WBREMW — FRE

V1

(48

(@)

AEEETHEL R THER
B(HEIDRBFINURES
THAREERER-NAELFNR
THREHAEEBIERQAR(I
XBra NI Y 2HEBEF
B ZEE RS Y ERBIRNAE
BUENRR R BRI - REBNZ
EMH RS TEER - TR
NEBEEELBEREE -

Eit  BYEXESEREEMER
ERTMITERIRARAERE
ERFEERIHN -2 -—TF=
A=t—HEMGZSWEZEE
ERBRE ARz T EEEMGTT
BFEENAZHBFEE - IRE
RIEEFFEB 2 EMBERTIGTA
RERER ZBFEMEHEER (I
28(a)) - TEWRARAN-_ZR—F
HEIMBRARDEH  BREARE
EREREATR -

a2 FIRR AR 25T E AR 8l
HERME{E§ 5 89,228,000 Tt (=
FZNE :81,722,000/87T) °

R-ZE-—ZFF=A=+—-HB" ' &
HE{E 480,192,000 8 TL(=ZFZ N
F : 84,842,000 7T) 22FEIK
HIEAREBMERTEE ZER
(MtzE30(a)) °
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment

are stated at cost.

At 31st March 2010, the carrying amount of
furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles held under finance leases were
HK$6,653,000 (2009: HK$9,085,000) and
HK$206,000 (2009: HK$637,000) respectively.

Depreciation expense of HK$8,383,000 (2009:
HK$7,723,000) have been included as part of the

administrative expenses.

During the year ended 31st March 2009,
HK$20,886,000 has been reclassified from
property, plant and equipment to investment

properties as a result of change in usage.

Lease rental income amounting to HK$2,880,000
(2009: HK$5,820,000) relating to lease of
furniture, fixture and equipment are included in the

consolidated income statement.

Revaluation deficit of HK$2,418,000 (2009: surplus
of HK$3,440,000) and HK$87,000 (2009: Nil) has
been charged to building revaluation reserves and
to other gains/(losses) in the consolidated income

statement, respectively.
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14 YR - WBREMW — FRE

V1

(48

(d)

AEEZBFEMEEAR MY
¥ BBERREBHEBIBD AER
ZAUN:

R-ZZE-—ZEF=ZA=+—8"
REBREHRNFTEZHFAE KB
RBREUARAEZREAEBS A
6,653,000/ T(= & & S F:
9,085,000% T ) & 206,000 % 7T
(ZZZNF : 637,000/87T) °

T E B £ 8,383,000 8 T (=2
NE 17,723,000 5t) E A BR{E
BEDTHBX o

BE-ZEZAF=A=1+—HIEF
E A » 20,886,000 Tt B A A &
REMBYE  BERRBEHD
BRREME -

EBEEERE - £ERXE2H
£ Uk A 2,880,000 8 T(=ZZEE R
£ :5,820,00058 7t ) st AR A UK

AR ©

B {4 B 412,418,000 (= &
ZNF  B8r3,440,0008 ) K&
87,000 B T(=ZFFENF : )5
RBFEMRBERAESRERZ
Htlas /(E518) Bk o



15 Intangible assets

At 1st April 2008
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March
2009

Opening net book amount

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 38)

Amortisation charge (note 7)

Impairment charge (note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2009 and
2010

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net book amount

R-Z2)N\FMA—AH

RN EE

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

15 ELRE

Contractual
supplier

Goodwill relationships

BE—SBhAEF
ZRA=+—HL*FHE

FHIREFE

W EEKIE AR

MEBER (MW7)
HEEM(ME7)

FRIREFE

NER=B—
=A=+-8

RETEERREE

&t

ik HRERRRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
22,413 9,029

- (4,419)
(22,413) (4,610)
22,413 9,029
(22,413) (9,029)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #R



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

15 |LEE 2)

15 Intangible assets (Continued)

In April 2008, the Group acquired 80% of equity
interest of Era Movies Limited, a company engaged in
sale and distribution of films in audio visual product
format in Hong Kong and Macau for a consideration of
HK$3,200,000. As a result of the acquisition, goodwill
and contractual supplier relationship of HK$528,000
and HK$4,000,000 respectively, were recognised in the
consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31st March 2009 (note 38(a)).

In October 2008, the Group acquired 52% of equity
interest of Fame Sky International Limited for a
consideration of HK$16,800,000. Asia Pacific Media
Holding Limited (Japan), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Fame Sky International Limited, engaged in the
channel supply for a movie channel in Japan. As a
result of the acquisition, goodwill and contractual
supplier relationship of approximately HK$21,885,000
and HK$5,029,000, respectively, were recognised in the
consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31st March 2009 (note 38(b)).

Amortisation of HK$4,419,000 has been included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated financial

statements during the year ended 31st March 2009.

Impairment test for goodwill

Management has assessed the recoverable amount
of the goodwill by estimating the cash flows expected
to be generated from the acquired business and
determined that impairment charges of approximately
HK$22,413,000 and HK$4,610,000 should be recorded
on goodwill and contractual supplier relationships
respectively in “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31st March 2009.
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R-ZZENFEA  XEEREBEER
MEBRATZ280% BRE(NREERE
FAREASEEREAHERRTE
g 2z/n7) K{E%3,200,0008 T °
BE_ZZhE=A=1+—HILEE
R EREBTRGE B EHRE D BIHER
BEREHNMHEREIE 528,000 TR
4,000,000 7% 7T (Kfi7£ 38(a)) °

R=ZZZNE+ B AEBEUEEFame
Sky International Limited 2Z52% %
¥ {1 516,800,000/ T ° Fame
Sky International Limited 2 & & Fff
B A ®]Asia Pacific Media Holding
Limited (Japan)/ABZARAE—SH A HE
EXRBE BE_ZEZNF=A=1+—
BLEFER  EWEmRES BT R
ROPEABEREVEEBRARY
21,885,000 % 7T & 5,029,000 % 7T (Ff
£ 38(b)) °

BE-ZEZENF=A=+T—HBLEE
A - #8H4,419,0008 TEE A GRS B
R 2MITHBIS | -

mEREN
EEECEBMITRBERRMES
ZREREFEEHE 2 TWEEEE - I
REBERSHHEHBRRZREERN
7 5% 22,413,000 % T & 4,610,000 /&
TERBE-EENAF=A=+—HL
FEGEMBERR2MTHEAX IR °



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDREENEBMERAR
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16 Investment properties — Group

At 1st April 2009 and 2008

Additions

Transferred from property, plant &
equipment (note 14(g))

Surplus/(deficits) on revaluation
(note 6)

At 31st March 2010 and 2009

R=BENFR-BENE

MmA—H
0

ERBEUE  HBERRE

(B3t 14(9))
EMER (A
(Ktet6)

RIZE—ZEFER_FZTNEF

H

+-8

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement:

Rental income (note 5)

Direct operating expense arising
from investment properties that

generate rental income (note 7)

HEWA (HZE5)

EEHASTWAZREMZE
FEE 2 EEEEMX
(Bfa£7)

B RS AR AR B

16 REYMR — +5KH

2010 2009
—2-2% —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
84,261 74,710
17,133 —

- 20,886
22,504 (11,335)
123,898 84,261

LT B NGRS RERER

2010 2009
—E—SF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
7,064 6,449

987 883
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16 Investment properties — Group (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

The investment properties of the Group were
revalued at 31st March 2010 by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, on the basis of open market
value, except for properties with amount of
HK$20,048,000 (2009: HK$21,211,000), where
depreciated replacement cost approach was
adopted due to the lack of reliable market

information.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at

their carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong, held on:
Leases of between
10 to 50 years

Outside Hong Kong,

held on: BE:

Leases of between TERTFZHEY
10 to 50 years

Lease of over 50 years HBA+FE2HEY

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases are set out

in note 37.

At 31st March 2010, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$70,348,000 (2009: HK$23,411,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 30(a)).
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16 BEME — KB @)

(@ AEBZREVNEN-Z-ZF
ZA=ZT-HHBIYUEXSEERK
HEMEREAEITERA S
BRABRMEEMR HERZTE
TEERMREMNITEE BN AL
220,048,000 B T (= ZFENF :
21,211,000 & 7T ) Y1 3EBR S ©

(o) AEEZHEREEIIRZREWE

REE  BTHIENESR :
TER+FZHEY

REBESI - BT HIEN

RmAMWT -
2010 2009
—F—EF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FET
89,648 72,611
32,850 11,000
1,400 650
123,898 84,261

RIZT AR S E BB 2 Rk
RIEHE SR EEENMIFLIT7 -

(c) M=ZE—ZF=A=+—H KA
#{EA70,348,000/ 8 T(ZBER
F 123,411,000 ) 2E TRE
MECEBIERREEFTERRT
B 2R (M 30(a)) °



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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royalty deposits — Group

At 1st April 2008

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March
2009

Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfers

Amortisation charge (note 7)
Impairment charge (note 7)
Disposal

Exchange difference

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2009

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March 2010

Opening net book amount
Additions

Transfers

Amortisation charge (note 7)
Impairment charge (note 7)
Exchange difference

Closing net book amount
At 31st March 2010

Cost

Accumulated amortisation

and impairment losses

Net book amount

R-ZBSI\F
MA—H

DN

EE 5053
WERE

SR RE

BE_SEBhE
=A=+—H
IEEE

FYRMEFE

0

BEE

BB (A7)

WEER (A7)

HE

ER =25

FRIREFE

R-BEAF
=A=+-H
R

L BHR
AR E

SREFE

fiE—E=—=F
=A=+—8H
IEEE

FAREFE

30

B

BEE R (F2F7)

BEEA(KEF7)

[ER =5

FRIREFE

R-ZB—2F
=RA=+—8H

DN

EE 505
MERE

SREFE

17 Film rights, films in progress and film

IR IR AR AT

17 BRENE  BEHPAERCRER
WigEe — *KH

Film

Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total

wmalh ERmE
EFhE BX Be #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
773,674 6,567 32,348 812,589
(714,570) (2,304) (10,675) (727,549)
59,104 4,263 21,673 85,040
59,104 4,263 21,673 85,040
6,121 700 21,490 28,311
38,551 (2,740) (35,811) —
(53,008) — - (53,008)
(4,507) — — (4,507)
(164) — - (164)
(90) — - (90)
46,007 2,223 7,352 55,582
601,398 4,528 18,027 623,953
(555,391) (2,305) (10,675) (568,371)
46,007 2,223 7,352 55,582
46,007 2,223 7,352 55,582
43,187 1,618 8,583 53,388
402 — (402) —
(32,262) — — (82,262)
(2,555) — - (2,555)
45 — - 45
54,824 3,841 15,533 74,198
530,267 4,759 15,533 550,559
(475,443) (918) — (476,361)
54,824 3,841 15,533 74,198
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

17 Film rights, films in progress and film 17 EFNE - BEHPERERER
royalty deposits — Group (Continued) iERe — F%KEH 2
(a) Amortisation charge of HK$32,262,000 (2009: (@) 5 BIES IR > 32,262,000 T
HK$53,008,000) with respect to film rights has (Z=Z L% : 53,008,0007% T )
been included in cost of sales in the consolidated BEEBREGt AR RaRZEHE
income statement. RN o
(b) The carrying amounts of film rights have been by EEREZRABECDEBERR
reduced to their recoverable amounts through B 52,555,000 8 T(ZEZ H
recognition of impairment loss of HK$2,555,000 % : 4,507,000 T ) B £ H AU
(2009: HK$4,507,000) which has been included in E 5 BEEEDF ASRElRE
cost of sales in the consolidated income statement. RZEERA °
18 Interests in associated companies — 18 REEATFIZER — xKE
Group
2010 2009
—2—-2F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RZEBZENFR-ZZEZENF
MMA—H - 1,570
Share of losses (note (c)) FE(R B8 (K17t () - (1,570)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-ZB-ZFR-ZZNF
=B=+—H - -
Amounts due from associated PE Uk Bt N B FRIR
companies (note (b)) (H1aE b)) 24,188 25,968
Provision for impairment of amounts  fEUg B 2\ 5 Z0E R E RS
due from associated companies (M1E (d))
(note (d)) (24,188) (25,968)
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DUEE e B

18 Interests in associated companies — 18 WEEATFIZHERZ — xKE
Group (Continued) (48

(a) At 31st March 2010, all of the Group’s interests in (@ MRIZE—ZEZF=A=+—H &5

associated companies were unlisted. The Group’s ABtE N R 2 EmAFE LT o K
principal associated company is: EEEEBENTS

Percentage

of equity

Nominal value interest

Place of Principal of issued share attributable

Name incorporation activities capital to the Group

2\ o 0 B 3 3t B EEEH ERTERFEE FEMMEN

KBSt

Silver Kent Technology Hong Kong Trading of 10,000,000 ordinary 45%

Limited (“Silver Kent”) audio visual shares of HK$1
products each
REMBEARAR(TRE]) BB BEYEEM 10,000,000 A% & AR H 45%

(b)

E1BRLZEER

The financial information of Silver Kent is extracted IRIEB 2 M ERFESZNT ¢
as follows:
2010 2009
—E—Z5F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Total assets BMEE 63,371 44,899
Total liabilities =N (64,938) (44,845)
Revenue U&= 67 9,359
Loss for the year FREE (1,570) (5,455)
During the year ended 31st March 2009, Silver Kent REEREBZE-ZEENE=A
has ceased operation. ET—HLEFERZLLE o
The amounts due from associated companies are (b) EWEEATFELBITAEN
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured, KA - REREEEERE -

interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
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18 Interests in associated companies — 18 WEEATFIZHERZ — xKE

Group (Continued) (48

(c) At 31st March 2010, the Group has not recognised (c) RZEBE—ZFF=Z=A=+—H ' &
losses amounting to HK$707,000 (2009: £ B3 SR SR E TR & 18 707,000
HK$885,000) for Silver Kent. The accumulated B T(=Z & Z N F:885,000/8
losses not recognised were HK$1,592,000 (2009: JT) o FR - WEERZRFEE
HK$885,000) during the year. In addition, the 51,592,000 8 t(ZZEF N F :
Group decided to make an impairment provision of 885,000/ 7T ) o Lt REER
approximately HK$14,740,000 for the full amount EEHEKERE - BEARRREAM
due from an associated company during the year HE#%  CRE2EEREHE QAT
ended 31st March 2009 after taking into account T8 1 H R (B B 15 29 14,740,000 78
its business development, its financial position and TG °

other factors.

(d) Movements on provision of amounts due from (d) FEWEEQATREREEZS

associated companies:

2010 2009
—E—Zf§ —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 REZZNFR-ZZNF
mE—H 25,968 11,228
Provision for impairment of FEUR B & X B SRR E R R
amount due from an associated (Kt 7)
company (note 7) - 14,740
Reversal of provision of amount ~ fEWEEE A FFUE
due from an associated BfERE (H27)
company (note 7) (1,780) -
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-EBE-ZER-ZFZTIF
=Z=A=+-—H 24,188 25,968
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19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity and 19 RERRFERREREHE

a jointly controlled operation — Group Bzt — s5%E
(a) Interest in a jointly controlled entity — Group (a) WEAERHNEREZE#E — F5£H
Group
TEE
2010 2009
—2—-25F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Interest in a jointly controlled REREHEE 2
entity, at cost (note (i)) B AN (Z (i) 1,083 1,083
Share of loss ity =] (1,083) (1,083)
Amount due from a jointly JE Uk A ) 422 161 B FR E
controlled entity (note (ii)) (22 (i) 22,333 22,333
Provision for amount due from a & 2L [5] 42 I 5 BE FUE B 5
jointly controlled entity (note (iv)) (% (iv)) (22,333) (22,333)

This represents the Group’s 70% interest in
Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Video Production
Company Limited (“Tung Ah”). The Group’s
control over Tung Ah is restricted by a
provision in the joint venture agreement
that requires unanimous approval by all
directors present for certain major decisions,
notwithstanding the Group having a majority
equity interest and the ability to appoint the
majority of directors. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have unilateral control over Tung Ah and
the equity method is used to account for its

investment therein.

() FEEAKEMEERRD
EREERERAB(TRE )
70% s c ARERREZ
EREZSEmED —RIK
NER - ATAXREEHSR
RBOBRERTEERZH
B BRTEEREAH
PREECES—BUtE-
Bt ER% AEEL
BBERRZZELTHES
B WU ESRETTEAREE
HEZRAZRE -
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19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity — 19 REFERFIERRLXFEHE
Group (Continued) Bzt — x50 @
(a) Interest in a jointly controlled entity — Group (a) HERRIEREZES — F5£E
(Continued) (#&
Particulars of Tung Ah are as follows: REZFHROT :
Percentage
of interest

in ownership/

voting power/

Country of Principal activity and loss sharing

Name establishment place of operation held indirectly

HiERH
wmEE ame

218 RILER EERBREERME FEBRZASL

BRREEERGEEGRA A The People’s Processing and 70%

(“Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Republic of distribution of audio
Video Production Company China (PRC) visual products in
Limited”) PRC
BRRDZFGREIEERA R MEARAME AEPEMIKRET 70%
(FPE) EEEM

(i) The amount due from the jointly controlled (i) FEUWHEEIZESEERIELE
entity is denominated in Hong Kong dollar, THREMN - BEKF - RER
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term EETEE o
of repayment.

(iii) At 31st March 2010 and 2009, Tung Ah was (il R=Z—ZFER-_ZZTNEF
in a net liabilities position and the Group =ZRA=+—H > REERF
has shared its loss up to the extent of its BEMRRE MAKEEEUE
investment cost of HK$1,083,000. & & B 751,083,000 % T 2

IHEEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #§
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19 Interest in a jointly controlled entity — 19 REREFEREZIES —
Group (Continued) 5B =)
(a) Interest in a jointly controlled entity — Group (a) RERRFEEZER — F£H
(Continued) (&
(iv) Movement on provision of amount due from a (iv) FEUWHEEGE e E RS
jointly controlled entity: 225
2010 2009
—2—-FF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET

At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RIZEZENFR-ZZZENGF
MA—H 22,333 21,890
Provision for impairment of B EEFI S FIE
amount due from a jointly WERME (K 7)

controlled entity (note 7) - 443
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 A=—Z—ZTHEK —TTHF
=A=+—H 22,333 22,333
(b) Jointly controlled operation — Group (b) HFEEFEHE — FKE

In November 2009, the Group entered into a jointly REZEENFE+—8  AEEEB
controlled operation with an independent third VE=ZFRETHEZEHZER &£
party to develop, operate and distribute a pay mENTEERER KERDH—
television channel to be broadcasted in various B ESRIESE - BE—Z—ZFF
countries within Asia. During the year ended 31st ZA=1+T—HLEEFER  ffhti
March 2010, the share of income from this jointly [EZEFIZERE 2 WAL 5 767,000 8
controlled operation approximated HK$767,000. As Lo RZBE—FF=H=+—H -
at 31st March 2010, the Group does not have any 7N £ [ 30 F i L ZE T D AR AA

share of contingent liabilities and commitments in BEREE -

respect of this operation.

“EENFZA=T—-HLF

There was no jointly controlled operation during the £
W AEBEIESLE G o

year ended 31st March 2009.

i
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20 Interests in subsidiaries — Company 20 WIBEARIZHERZ — XAF
Company
F2F
2010 2009
—E2—FF —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET TBT
Unlisted shares, at cost (note (a)) FELETBRMD - LR (5 (a)) 46,010 46,010
Amounts due from subsidiaries PEUS S B8 2 BIFRIR (FE (b))
(note (b)) 519,516 523,528
565,526 569,538
Provision for impairment of amounts  F& Uk [ff & 2 51 5018 B (E e
due from subsidiaries (233,885) (233,885)
331,641 335,653
(a) Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note (@) TEMBLAFEBERNREGSIH
42 to the consolidated financial statements. WEMEEA2 o
(b) The amounts due from subsidiaries are (b) FEWRKMBATRELBTASEMN
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, unsecured, IR R E G EE TR o

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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21 Financial instruments by category 21 BENESZCHMEBEIR
The accounting policies for financial instruments have MEIECEREECEARTIE
been applied to the line items below: =l
Group *TEHE
Financial
assets at
Available- fair value
for-sale through
Loans and financial profit or
receivables assets loss Total
BOFE
Bk AT E HABREE
FEUR R IA MHEEE ZHEEE #st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT FEIT FETT
Assets BE
At 31st March 2010 R-E—ZF
=A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial AEHENKEE
assets (note 23(a)) (K1EE23(a)) - 45,086 - 45,086
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H{th fElL
=HIE 28,443 - - 28,443

Financial assets at fair value &2 &zt A
through profit or loss (note 83 5% 2 81 7%

23(b)) BE (M 230b) - - 50,124 50,124
Pledged bank deposit (note 3K #HRITIF
22(b)) (Hia22(b)) 43,517 - - 43,517
Cash and cash equivalents H&KRZEHEE
(note 26) 5B (ffaF 26) 24,628 - - 24,628
96,588 45,086 50,124 191,798
At 31st March 2009 R-ESAEF
=B=+—H
Available-for-sale financial AHEEMKEE
assets (note 23(a)) (KtaE23(a)) — 18,180 = 18,180
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H{th fELY
;IE 32,251 - — 32,251
Financial assets at fair value %2 F{E5T A
through profit or loss BEk 2%
(note 23(b)) &= (KEF23(b)) — — 22,476 22,476
Pledged bank deposit 2IKIFRITERK
(note 22(b)) (B3 22(b) 43,500 - - 43,500
Cash and cash equivalents H&RZEEHEE
(note 26) H B (a7 26) 56,620 = = 56,620
132,371 18,180 22,476 173,027
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21 Financial instruments by category 21 BENBSZHMEBEIR @)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) XEKE(E)
Other
Liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
REHEE
BOAFHERA SRRz Hfth
BRRCAR MEARE #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EIT FEiT F#EiT
Liabilities afR
At 31st March 2010 R-Z—ZF
=B=+—H
Borrowings (note 30(a)) 188 (K17 30(a)) - 39,671 39,671
Obligations under finance Rl E H AR
leases (note 30(b)) (ft&E 30(b)) - 3,023 3,023
Trade and other payables B 5 R HEAMESTIE - 14,790 14,790
- 57,484 57,484
At 31st March 2009 R-ZEThEFE=A
=+—H
Derivate financial instrument PTHEB T B (Hi£31)
(note 31) 36 — 36
Convertible notes — liability ARBREE — 86
portion (note 31) (K 31) = 19,404 19,404
Borrowings (note 30(a)) BE (KfZE 30(a)) — 22,387 22,387
Obligations under finance leases &i& i8 #)5E ([ 77
(note 30(b)) 30(b)) — 6,700 6,700
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMESTIE = 5,755 5,755
36 54,246 54,282
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21 Financial instruments by category

(Continued)

Company

Assets

At 31st March 2010

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20)

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (note 26)

At 31st March 2009

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20)

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents (note 26)

Liabilities
At 31st March 2010

Other payables

At 31st March 2009

Derivate financial instrument
(note 31)

Convertible notes — liability
portion (note 31)

Other payables

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

21 BENBSZHMBEIR@®

ENF
Loans and
receivables
HREREKRE
HK$’000
FET
"E
N _E—EF=A=1+—H
FE U Bt B 1 B FRIE (MfEE 20) 285,631
Hth e TR IE 837
REeMERKREER (K 26) 10
286,478
R-ZEZEAFE=A=+—H
FE UK S B8 1 BIFRIE (KAt 20) 289,643
H{th FE UL R IE 20,261
REeERERKREER (2t 26) 9
309,913
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BRESRE
BOFERA SRRz Hfth
HakzafE MBAaRB gt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
af®
BWE—EF
=A=+—H
H b (T FIE - 58 58
RZBEAF
=A=+—H
PTEME T B (HaE31)
36 — 36
ARBREE — 8EH5
(HEE31) — 19,404 19,404
Hth FEAS 7R IE — 494 494
36 19,898 19,934
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

22 Credit quality of financial assets 22 MBBETAZCEHER
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither HARBHSRECHEIAEZEEER
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference AZ2EZNMEETR(NE)SEEHE
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical MR R 2 R EREITRE ¢

information about the counterparty’s default rates:

(a) Trade receivables — Group (a) BHEEKRIE — x5H
2010 2009
—ZE—-ZF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEx

Counterparties without external WEMBEETR2E TS
credit rating

Existing customers with no 38 1 S HE R AC 8 2
defaults in the past HERF 5,292 18,025
Existing customers with some BEFETHEBREL SR Z
defaults in the past RERF - 243
5,292 18,268
(b) Pledged bank deposit — Group (b) BEMRITER — xKH
2010 2009
—Z2—-2F —E2NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFET FAET
Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) (E& R (HEEE)
A2 A2 43,517 43,500
Hong Kong dollar denominated balances as at 31st R-ZB-ZFF=A=+—HBHUBR
March 2010 represent fixed term deposit placed in ABNZHEFEEHATBEER
commercial banks in Hong Kong that was pledged TEBER  BEAERELEER
against the banking facilities granted to the Group. FERRITEEZER - ZRHZ
Please refer to Note 30(a) for further details of the HE—SFHIEESEMIEE30() °
arrangement.
The weighted average effective interest rate per R=-Z-—ZFF=A=+—H B
annum on pledged bank deposit was 0.20% per FHER1T IR Z IR 39 B PR F 2R
annum (2009: 1.18% per annum) as at 31st March AFE020E(=ZFEZNEFE £
2010. 1.18[E)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

22 Credit quality of financial assets 22 MEIAZERER @
(Continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents — Group and (c) Re&RERBREEA — a%KERK
Company b 3/
Group Company
*KHE r. /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —E2ENF ZEBE-BF C"—ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET T FET
Credit rating EETR
(Standard & Poor’s) (fEXs)
A-1+ A-1+ 1,861 240 - —
A-1 A-1 843 1,025 - —
A-2 A-2 21,850 515,818 10 9
A-3 A-3 - 24 - =
Cash on hand EFEE 74 18 - —
24,628 56,620 10 9

23 Financial assets — Group

23 MERE — *KE

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets — Group (a) FIHHERBEEE — FKE
2010 2009
—E—ZF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 R-ZEZFNERZZEZENGF
MA—H 18,180 59,407
Fair value gains/(losses) HRSES A TERE
transferred to equity (B#E) 26,906 (40,602)
Impairment charge (note 7) WEE R (KL 7) - (625)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-ZB-ZER_ZZNF
=A=+—H 45,086 18,180
Available-for-sale financial assets A/ HEIHBEEEIE
include the following: T5|&18 :
Equity securities listed in Hong BB LMRAES
Kong, at market value BmiE 45,086 18,180
Unlisted equity securities I ERBRAES 625 625
45,711 18,805
Less: Provision for impairment OB ORERE (625) (625)
45,086 18,180
Market value of listed securities EhEzmE 45,086 18,180
At 31st March 2010, the carrying amounts of R=ZZE—ZF=A=+—H 7A#
available-for-sale financial assets are denominated HEMKEEZRABNBTAE

in Hong Kong dollars (2009: Same).

W (ZZ2ZAEF @R -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

23 MEBERE — *&8 =)

23 Financial assets — Group (Continued)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (b) BOAFEHABERCHESE
loss — Group — F&EH

2010 2009

—EZ-ZF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RIEENFRZZEENF

WMA—H 22,476 18,401
Additions 30 8,498 20,044
Disposals HE (2,317) (1,204)
Fair value gains/(losses) (note 6)  AV{EWZE (E#E) (fzt6) 21,467 (14,765)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-Z-ZFR-BTNF

=A=+—H 50,124 22,476

At 31st March 2010, all of the financial assets RZE—ZEF=A=+—8 > FEEA

at fair value through profit or loss are equity
securities listed in Hong Kong, denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (2009: Same) except for a
balance of HK$4,255,000 which is equity securities
listed in United Kingdom and is denominated in
British Pound (2009: None). At 31st March 2010,
the financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are stated at their market value (2009: Same).

At 31st March 2010, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$18,454,000 (2009: nil) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (note 30(a)).
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FHEABRRZUBEETABTEBL
TRAES  UBTHEBEN(ZEZH
F:HRE) 0 M4 884,255,000 T H
REEEH2RAESRUREREN
(ZZZAEF B) - R-ZT-—ZFF=

A=+—H #ATFEFABRKZZH
KREEZEMEINR(ZZZENF : 1
&

~
o

A4

—E-ZTHE-F=1+—H8  REAE
# 18,454,000 B T(=ZZNF : |)z
ETRAFEGFTAEBRERZUBEED
EAEATEBMERRBITEEZER
(M= 30(a)) °
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25

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventories — Group

Finished goods

H

Less: provision for obsolete inventories  Jif : [REF S #1E

Inventories mainly comprise of audio visual products.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and

included as part of cost of sales in the consolidated
income statement amounted to HK$6,430,000 (2009:

HK$8,053,000) (note 7).

Trade and other receivables — Group

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of

receivables

Trade receivables — net
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables

B 5 B
B BRWGRIE R E R

B2 RUGKRE — FH
FANFE - ZEREM
FEW R TE

B RS AR AR B

24 ¥R — ¥%KE

25

2010 2009
—e-2% —EENF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FHET
11,678 11,185
(4,727) (4,240)
6,951 6,945

FETEZEESEER BRARMAXAL
SFARERBERERHERE -2
ZIFERA%6,430,000/8 T (ZFFH
% : 8,053,0008T) (MiFET7) °

RARAMBUREA — FKE

2010 2009
—e-2F —zENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
30,732 43,746
(22,596) (23,045)
8,136 20,701
28,658 48,011
36,794 68,712
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e B

25 BHREMEBURE — KE

25 Trade and other receivables — Group

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Current to 3 months ENEAZ= =1 B
4 to 6 months e i
Over 6 months BB~ E A

The Group’s credit terms to trade receivables generally

range from 7 to 90 days (2009: same).

As of 31st March 2010, trade receivables of
HK$2,844,000 (2009: HK$2,433,000) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as

follows:
Up to 3 months =EAR
Over 3 months BB=EA

As of 31st March 2010, trade receivables of
HK$22,596,000 (2009: HK$23,045,000) were impaired
and fully provided for. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to a long-standing customer,

which is experiencing unexpected financial difficulty.
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V1

(48

B RWHIR ZREDOMUMT ¢

2010 2009
—2—-2F —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET TET
8,081 19,620

47 70

22,604 24,056
30,732 43,746

FEEESREREZEER RN T
7TER(ZZEAF : E) °

R—ZE-ZF=A=+-H EBEZE
Uy % 182,844,000/ T(Z BB N F :
2,433,000 7t) EBMHAEREE - ZZE
FEWFRIBE 2 £ W BT R H 2B
YEFEHE - 25 EZEWHIEZRER
DAOT -

2010 2009
—s—2f —2TE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHRT
2,789 1,828

55 605

2,844 2,433

R-ZE—ZF=A=+—H EBEZE
WK 18 22,596,000 B T (ZEZ N F
23,045,000 7t ) R E R % o &5l
HEERREEEE - ZERER S
ZRBRECRAZTFSEE -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Trade and other receivables — Group

(Continued)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s trade and other receivables are principally

denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of

B RS AR AR B

25 BHREMEBURE — KE

V1

(#
R-B-ZBFR-ZBBAF=ZA=1—
B AKEEZKEMEYREZKRE
BEZEUBTREN

AEEEZBREREREREBEZEZE N

trade receivables are as follows: T :
2010 2009
—E—-ZTF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 R-ZE—ZEFER-ZFZNEF
MMA—H 23,045 13,531
Provision for impairment of FEWF BRI ERE
receivables (note 7) (M1aE7) - 9,514
Receivables written off during the FRHMEE A EERE 2
year as uncollectible FEW SRR (449) —
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-B-—ZEER-ZBZNF
22,596 23,045

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included as part of administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement (note 7).
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally
written off when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

FBRREREREZRIRERETA
REWBERERTHRMAX 32 (E
7) c BRERIKRZSHE -—RNABRB T
SWEIFEIN R SR o

RERBzESEERRS RS EE
WHRIEZ AFE AREALESFHEM
ERRERER -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

26 Cash and cash equivalents — Group 26 HeRhERRALEE — &%
and Company B RELF
Group Company
.3 | EANF
2010 2009 2010 2009
B —EENF ZEB-BF —ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET TFAEIT FET
Cash at bank and on hand 477 R EHFEE 8,042 6,399 10 9
Short-term bank deposits EERITERR 16,586 50,221 - =
24,628 56,620 10 9
Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the RERERRESEAUTIEKRE
following currencies: fr :
Group Company
*KRE b /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
B —EENF ZEB-BF _"—ZTENF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET FET TFAEIT FExT
Denominated in: UTSEBREN
Hong Kong dollar BT 19,242 51,941 10 9
Renminbi AR¥ 2,050 1,805 - —
New Taiwan dollar A 2,332 1,800 — —
Japanese Yen H & 1,001 1,074 — —
United States dollar x5 3 —
24,628 56,620 10 9
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 Cash and cash equivalents — Group
and Company (Continued)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the

following for the purposes of the cash flow statement:

BekERRLER
RITES (aE 30)

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts (note 30)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.5% (2009: 1.71%) per annum as at 31st March
2010. The deposit has an average maturity of 31 days
(2009: 31 days).

26

B RS AR AR B

HeRFRARLER — &K
BRELEE)
RESHBEMS  Be ZEARLHE
BRBITEXEEUTSE

Group

xEH
2010 2009
—E—-EF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFAEIT FET
24,628 56,620
(7,095) (6,387)
17,533 50,233

R=ZZ—ZFF=A=+—H  EHRIT
BRZERFNEAFR0SE(ZEEN
FAE) ZEERZFHBRE
B1H(=ZZZENF :31H) °

27 Share capital and premium — Group 27 BFERREE — *KERFLD
and Company 7
Group
350
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each Ordinary share of HK$0.02 each
SREE1 BT HER SREE0.2ETCEER
No. of shares No. of shares
KirBH KiAB B
'000 HK$°000 '000 HK$:000
& A7 & Tér
Authorised EE
At 1st April 2008 and 31st March RZEEN\FMA-AR
2009 “EEAFZA=T-A 3,000,000 300,000 - -
Share subdivision (note a) Rt (i) (3,000,000) (300,000) 15,000,000 300,000
At 31st March 2010 RZE-Z£%=f=1-H = - 15,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid BRTRAR
At 1st April 2008 and 31st March RZEEN\FMA-AR
2009 “EEAFZA=T-A 982,091 98,209 - -
Reduction of par value of ordinary ROFAEHSBRAE
shares due to share subdivision (Hita)
(note a) (982,091) (98,209) 4,910,455 98,209
At 31st March 2010 RZE-Z£%=f=1-H = - 4,910,455 98,209
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DE R e

27 Share capital and premium — Group

and Company (Continued) Bl (&)
Note a: Kitita -
Pursuant to a specific resolution passed on 21st December
2009, each of the existing issued and unissued ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
was subdivided into five ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
(the “Share Subdivision”), which was approved by the
shareholders of the Company and became effective on
22nd December 2009.

27 BRFERRBRR — *KEREL

RER-ZSZAF+-_A=-+—HBEAZ
BRRZER > AATRAFZTREEO.
BLTZREERITRARTTERIFAS
AREREEO.02B T 2B ([IRMIF
#) HEEAQATABRRAERAR=-ZTZT
NEF+FZA=+=HEXK -

Share
premium
B iniaE
HK$°000
FBT
Issued and fully paid EBRTRHAE
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 REZBAER-ZZENFHA—A 167,569
Transfer to reserves (note 28(b)(ii)) B 2 {F 4 (/AL 28(b) (i) (167,569)
At 31st March 2010 REZB-—Z2F=ZA=+—H -
28 Reserves — Group and Company 28 fEfi — *RKERFAF
(a) Group (a) FKH
2010 2009
—E—-TF —EZNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Share redemption reserve B% 17 BE 2] 17 8 12 12
Contributed surplus (note (i) BNBER(HEE (i) 189,009 107,099
Exchange difference BN ER (2,401) (819)
Buildings revaluation reserve BFEMHE 12,338 14,357
Available-for-sale financial assets A/ HEH B EEE (L
revaluation reserve B 42,662 15,756
Retained earnings/(accumulated  REZF (25TE1E)
losses) 72,857 (64,767)
314,477 71,638
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Reserves — Group and Company
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Group (Continued)

28

() Movements of each component of the

reserves are set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group

represents the credit arising from the

reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999, and the transfer from

share premium during the year ended 31st

March 2010 (Note 28 (b)(ii)).

Sy e
s — *RKERELT @)

(a) FEMW(4)
() REEHHIZRDARGS
RRHBHE -

(i) ANEEZHARREREE
—AARE=BA=+—H1E
FEHRREARBZ —Z—
ZE=ZA=1+—HLFESE
73 B R 10RME (MIEE 28(b)(ii))
FREEZHER -

Company (b) FAFH
Share- (Accumulated
Share based losses)/
redemption payment  Contributed retained
reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
B {7 FREI BB fn (ReHER)
iR XARIAGE AR wEafn it
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note (i)
(Bt ()
At 1st April 2008 RZZENE
mA—AH 12 22,197 153,110 (110,821) 64,498
Profit for the year FERRF - - - 5,713 5,713
Expiry of share-based ~ WUR 13 % (4R E
compensation M (HEt 32)
(note 32) - (22,197 - 22,197 -
At 31st March 2009 RZZENE
=A=1+—H 12 - 153,110 (82,911) 70,211
At 1st April 2009 R-E-ZE&
mA—H 12 - 153,110 (82,911) 70,211
Loss for the year FRER - - - (4,234) (4,234)
Transfer from share BRBRNRE
premium (note i) (Hieii) - - 81,910 85,659 167,569
At 31st March 2010 R-Z-EF
=B=+-H 12 - 235,020 (1,486) 233,546
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

28 Reserves — Group and Company
(Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of
the subsidiaries and the net asset value of
the subsidiaries acquired, and the credit
arising from the reduction of share capital
during the year ended 31st March 1999.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus shall
not be distributable if these are reasonable

grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

On 21st December 2009, a special resolution
was passed to cancel the share premium
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Company as of 22nd December 2009, and
the remaining balance of the credit arising
therefrom be credited to the contributed

surplus account of the Company.
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(b)

2T (E)

(i)

(i)

KATZBABBRIEARDT
RERHBEARCBITRE
M 2% 47 2 IR 10 T 8 B T IR
BHEAREEFEZE
BoMERBE-—AAAE
ZA=t—-HIEFEERR
AMEEZER - REEAR
E—NAN—F AR EEE
i) MESBEBEETHERET
PIETE - Bl A BT A #
DK

(1) AAFTBREBEHRIEDF
REELNEEERE
BXAE8E;

2 ARAEEZAERE
EREmMIREEER
HEBITRAUR KRS
BERZAB -

R-ZBEAF+ZB=+—
B> —HEEIRAERERB
LA 88 IR 10 0% 18 0 LUK 85
ARAR=ZZEBAEFE+ZA
“+ZHZRFEE mH
tESE ZERBGFTALRAQF
ZIMABERER o



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

29 Trade and other payables — Group 29 BHRHEMEFMRE — XKH
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EZNEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Trade payables g 5 EIFIE 11,749 5,755
Receipts in advance FEW R IE 16,770 19,179
Other payables and accruals HAih e IE R BT E H 40,199 53,914
68,718 78,848
The ageing analysis of trade payables was as follows: BSENREBZREDNAT ¢
2010 2009
—E—ZF —EZNEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Current to 3 months ENERZ =18 A 9,933 2,483
4 to 6 months mZE & A 5 485
Over 6 months BB~ E A 1,811 2,787
11,749 5,755
At 31st March 2010 and 2009, carrying value of trade NR-E—EFER_ZEEAE=H=1+—
payables approximate their fair values, and were B BEZRWNREZREEBERAE A FE
denominated in the following currencies: BE > WUUTSEB S8 :
2010 2009
—E—-EF —EZNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F&iT FET
Denominated in: UTSEBREN
Hong Kong dollar BIT 4,172 5,014
Japanese Yen H 745 741
United States dollar E 6,832 —
11,749 5,755
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYEREEBRAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

29 Trade and other payables — Group 29
(Continued)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009, carrying value of receipt
in advance, other payable and accruals approximate
their fair values. At 31st March 2010 and 2009, receipt in
advance were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and SGD, and other payables and accruals were mainly

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

30 Borrowings and obligations under 30
finance leases — Group

Bank overdrafts, secured RTEL  BIKF
Secured bank loans — current BEBRITER — RBID
portion

Bank borrowings — current portion  $R{TEE — REIH

(note (a)) (K1&E (a))

Secured bank loans — non-current  BEFETEF — IERH
portion (note (a)) B2 (K17t (a))

Total borrowings BEHE

Obligations under finance leases B & ERIE (M (b))
(note (b))
— Current portion — MENE D
— Non-current portion — ERETD
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BB EMEMARE — FKE
(#&)
R-ZE-—ZEFR-ZZAF=ZA=1+-—
B FEWRIE - EthERIERETE
AZREEEEAFEESE HR_F—
ZER_TTNF=A=1+—H AWK
MEFELBTRIIETREN ™
HitEAREREFERRETEUET
REY -

fERERmEHENRE — 2KE

2010 2009
—e-2% —EENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT FET
7,095 6,387
12,855 16,000
19,950 22,387
19,721 =
39,671 22,387
3,023 3,677

- 3,023

3,023 6,700




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group (Continued)
(a) Bank borrowings

The bank borrowings are repayable in the following

periods:

No later than 1 year 15K
Between 1 to 2 years 122FR
Between 2 to 5 years 2Z5FR
Later than 5 years 5%F%

The bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AREE
Total Fab

B RS R AR B

30 fERRMEHENKE — F5KE

(&)
(a)

B|ITER
RITEEARTHHEEE -

2010 2009
—g-%% =
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHT

19,950 =
2,403 =
7,526 =
9,792 =

39,671 =

RITEEUTIIEEREN -

2010 2009
—g-%% —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FHT
32,117 22,387
7,554 =
39,671 22,387
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

30 Borrowings and obligations under
finance leases — Group (Continued)
(a) Bank borrowings (Continued)
At 31st March 2010, banking facilities amounting to
HK$87,576,000 (2009: HK$60,500,000) granted by
banks to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the
Group’s buildings with carrying value of
HK$80,192,000 (2009: HK$84,842,000)
and certain investment properties with
carrying value of HK$70,348,000 (2009:
HK$23,411,000) (note 16);

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company (note 35);

(iii) pledged deposits of HK$43,517,000 (2009:
HK$43,500,000) of the Group (note 22(b));

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$18,454,000 (2009: nil) of the
Group (note 23(b)).

At 31st March 2010, the Group’s bank
borrowings bear floating interest rate of
HIBOR plus 0.5% to 1.5%. The weighted
average effective interest rate per annum of
the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31st March
2010 is 2.31% (2009: 2.80%).

The carrying amounts of the borrowings
approximate their fair values at 31st March
2010 as the borrowings carry floating interest
rates.
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(#)

(a)

MITHE (&
R-ZE-ZF=A=+—H &%
% 87,576,000 B T (ZZEZNF :
60,500,000 7T ) ZIRITEECE
RITRTFAEE > W HUTFIE
#

() BR M {& A80,192,000% T
(== F N1 F : 84,842,000
BL)ZAEEBETEFRE
M {8 %A70,348,00078 jt(=
Z T i, F 23,411,000
T RZETREWMEZEER
i (fisE16) ;

(i) ANDABFILZAAERME
35) ;

iy &~ &£ BB K # & K
43,517,000 T(ZZEZE N
£ © 43,500,000 7T ) (i 5
22(b)) ;

(ivy AEERAFEFTABEZR
2 B #% & % 18,454,000 78
T(ZEZNEF . 8)(KE

23(b)) °
RZE-—ZF=A=+—

H AX&EEZRTEERSE
BIRITREREMOSESR
1.5EZFEFIEEE - A=
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

30 Borrowings and obligations under 30 EERMEEEKIE — XKE

finance leases — Group (Continued)
(b) Obligations under finance leases
At 31st March 2010, the Group’s finance lease

liabilities were repayable as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second year EF-FR

Future finance charges on finance & iH 4 > 7 28 81 7% 52
leases

Present value of finance lease MEENEBZERE
liabilities

The present value of finance lease liabilities were

repayable in the following periods:

Within one year —FR
In the second year EF-_FR

(&)

(b) REEHEHKIE
RZZB-ZF=ZA=+—RH ' &K

B RERNRERNT I HEE

= .

2010 2009
“E—-BF —EBNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
3,164 3,964

- 3,164

3,164 7,128
(141) (428)
3,023 6,700

BMEENEEZRERRT HHE

83 :
2010 2009
—B—BF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
3,023 3,677
- 3,023
3,023 6,700
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EODRGENEBERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

31 Convertible notes — Group and

Company

At 1st April 2008

Changes in fair value of

derivative financial instrument

(note 6)
Interest accretion (note 8)
Repurchase during the year
(note c)

Interest paid during the year

At 31st March 2009

At 1st April 2009

Changes in fair value of

derivative financial instrument

(note 6)
Interest accretion (note 8)
Repayment during the year
(note d)

Interest paid during the year

At 31st March 2010
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31 A[#iERE — *REREL

|

Liability Derivative
portion portion Total
BRES TESS #at
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
22,683 14,005 36,688
- (13,951) (13,951)
7,362 — 7,362
(9,438) (18) (9,456)
(1,203) — (1,203)
19,404 36 19,440
19,404 36 19,440
— (36) (36)
2,210 — 2,210
(20,000) — (20,000)
(1,614) — (1,614)




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 Convertible notes — Group and
Company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

On 11th August 2006, the Company issued
convertible notes (the “Notes”) in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$100 million. The initial
conversion price, which is subject to anti-
dilution adjustments in certain events and a reset
mechanism as set out in the note subscription
agreements, is HK$0.44 per share (before the
Share Subdivision effective on 22nd December
2009). For the year ended 31st March 2008,
convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$70,000,000 were converted and
159,090,905 shares were issued to the holders of
the Notes. For the year ended 31st March 2010,
convertible notes with an aggregate principal

amount of HK$10,000,000 were repurchased.

The derivative portion of the Notes was revalued
to its fair value using the Binominal model at
each conversion date, repurchase date and at
every reporting date. Changes in fair values were
reflected as other gains/(losses) — net in the
consolidated income statement. Changes in fair
value of the derivative portion resulted in a fair
value gain on derivative financial instrument of
HK$36,000 recognised during the year (2009:
HK$13,951,000).

During the year ended 31st March 2008, 70% of
the Notes were converted by certain note holders,
and 159,090,905 new shares were issued. For the
Notes converted, the respective derivative financial
instrument was fair valued at each conversion date,
and along with the amortised cost of the liability
portion, was recorded as share capital and share
premium of the Company. As a result, share capital
and share premium increased by HK$15,909,000
and HK$156,413,000, respectively, arising from the

conversion of the Notes.

B RS AR AR B

31 A#iERE — *RERE

NCIIE )

()

RZZBEXENA+T—B > &2
T EITAR £ 4585 100,000,000 7
TRZABRREBE(EE]D - 95
RBRE(MEETS4HEERES
R IR RIE R i A 2
EHET)AER0.44B T (AR
BIFER—TETAF+_A=+=
BAEXMAE) BE-ZZTNEFE=
B=+—BLEE K&#BHBEH
70,000,000 T2 A/ R EHE
i 0 159,090,905 B A2 E @)
EERBEART BE-ZT—ZF
ZA=T—HLFE FT2BEAH
10,000,000 8 T 2 AI AR EEE
EREE o

EEZITEDIEREZIEE - B
EEREEZHAFA-—EAER
EMEHATE - ATFESEBNER
EhERARMAHM(EE),
Wz — B TEBDZAFE
SHERFARIATEMBEIAZ
A FEKE 36,000 BT (=ZEF N
£ :13,951,0005&T) °

RBZ-ZZTN\F=A=+—H
HEEER T0%EBECEETE
BEFEARE 159,090,905 %
FRMOERIT - RERBRZEEM
5 HEEZITERBEIAEZAT
BEERERBRAEE  YERE
BN 2 HMERERTRARDAZ
BARKRMDEE - it BRAR
RBERZREET D BN
15,909,000 7t & 156,413,000
HBIT ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

31

32

Convertible notes — Group and

Company (Continued)

(c) During the year ended 31st March 2009,
HK$10,000,000 of the remaining Notes were
repurchased by the Company at par. On the
repurchase date, respective derivative financial
instrument was fair valued, and along with the
amortised cost of the liability portion, resulted in a
loss of HK$544,000 being recognised (note 6).

(d) During the year ended 31st March 2010, the
remaining Notes with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 were repaid by the Group as the
Notes reached their maturities.

Share-based payment — Group and
Company

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on 30th August 2005. No options were
granted under the Scheme up to 21st June 2007.

On 21st June 2007, 77,100,000 options were granted to
certain service providers to subscribe for 77,100,000
shares (before the Share Subdivision effective on 22nd
December 2009) of the Company at an exercise price
of HK$0.9 per share. Of the options granted, 50% of
them vested on 1st August 2007 and the remaining 50%
became vested on 1st November 2007.

The fair value of the options granted of HK$22,197,000
on the date of granted and was determined using the
Black-Scholes-Merton Option Pricing Model and based

on the following parameters:

31

32

AERE — sRER

XN (#)

(c) MEBE-ZEENF=A=+—HL
FER > Ttk 210,000,000
BLTEHEAQRIREERER - KB
B HREZTEMBIAZD
FEEEE  TERSEHRSHHE
BN 0 FE B2 U8 48 544,000 58 T (B
#e6) e

d BE=FT-FTF=ZA=7-
HEFER HBEXESHEHEAR
20,000,000 T 2 ZE EH E 1% 2
HmMEREEERE -

DEBMZARE — sKER
b, /N
ARABR-ZZHEFNB=TAKEME
RIESTEI(TZEE]) - BE-_STLHF
ABZt+—B - TEBEZERLE
BRAE o

RZZEZLtHFARA=-+—H  UTT
FEESRIOB TmME TR ME
& % 177,100,000 17 B8 IR £ LA R B
77,100,000 i A& 2 & IR 13 (R IR 19 37
HR—_ZEZENRFET-A=-T-HENX
AI) c EREBRESR  50%ER==F
Z+FENA—BEE  MEER50% IR
—EEtFE+—HA—HEB -

RELHEH CREBREZATYE
22,197,00078 7t - NEAMAHKT — Hi
B — REHEEEEREREEN
TSHEE :

Spot Price REE HK$ 0.857& 70
Exercise Price TEE HK$ 0.90 & 7T
Risk Free Rate 42 [39 es 3R B == FF|ZE 4.051% p.a.
Expected Life of the Options IERR RETE ST e AR EARR 0.63 year
Expected Volatility TEHR R B = 115.36%
Expected Dividend Yield FEHARR B = 0.95%
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-based payment — Group and
Company (Continued)

The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on
management’s best estimate, the value of an option may
vary by the adoption of different variables of certain

subjective assumptions with uncertainty.

The expected volatility is based on historical volatilities
of the share prices of the Company over the period that

is equal to the expected life before the date of grant.

No option has been exercised since the date of grant

and all options were expired on 30th June 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities — Group
The movement in the deferred tax liabilities account is

as follows:

At 1st April 2009 and 2008

mA—H

Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A =)

Tax (credited)/charged directly to

equity Z I8
Charged/(credited) to the

consolidated income statement

(note 9)

(Bta£9)

At 31st March 2010 and 2009

B ERER (FTA), MR

32

33

R-BBAER-FINE

RiFERERMBR (Gt A)

B RS R AR B

DEHIZMHRE — xKER
ENF(#)

RSt E B RE A T ERST A2 2B RA
RNEREBREZREMT  BREZ
BERERRAE FRAIREZZEMR
R FERBHEE -

BHE B EDEAL DRERESRE
B AT > TS SR EIR > HI R 2
LREEE o

BREBHLR - WEERERTE
MArEBRECSR-ZZENFERA=T
A& o

BERBRAR — aKHE
FEBERERE Z#BOT

2010 2009
—2-2% —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
7,612 9,986

- 1,490

(399) 568

3,839 (4,432)
11,052 7,612

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 £ #R
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EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

33 REFRMAR — aKH

33 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group

(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable
profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of HK$247,339,000 (2009: HK$243,540,000) to
carry forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty
of their future recoverability. Such tax losses have no
expiry date, except for the tax losses amounting to
HK$1,558,000 which will be expired within 5 years;
HK$59,646,000 which will be expired within 5 to 10
years. (2009: HK$43,198,000 will be expired within 5 to
10 years).

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same

taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2008 R-ZEZENFEMA—H

Acquisition of subsidiaries UL BB A |
(note 38) (H1zE38)
Charged/(credited) to the RiRE =R INR
consolidated income S (BFA)
statement
Charged to equity RER R
At 31st March 2009 RZBEIEF
=A=+—H
Charged to the consolidated RiRE W= R IR
income statement
Credited to equity RERFTA
At 31st March 2010 R-Z2—ZF
=A=+—H
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(#)
AAMEEEDREEBBENRERA
REEBARRERBEAFUZSLEEBR
BRAELEFMEHEE  AEBEEARRE
8 %t T8 /§5 18 247,339,000 8 T(=Z &2 =
JU%F 243,540,000 T ) A 4% & LUK
AR ZEFRHBA - AR TEERER
Rz AT EIRE D - M EERZER
HEB ZEVESFBTEIEE
11,558,000 TR EFREH &
59,646,000 B TR EZETFANEIH o
(ZEZNF 43,198,000/ 8 TH R A
Z2+FREIE) -

REBEz BB EEETIEHEEERA - F
WIEEFFSHEEREBE22BNT ¢

BEFRFRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains/(losses) Total
LFERE
MERIRAE (E54R) st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
2,024 9,710 11,734
1,490 — 1,490
802 (2,942) (2,140)
— 568 568
4,316 7,336 11,652
657 3,658 4,315
— (399) (399)
4,973 10,595 15,568




MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

33 Deferred income tax liabilities — Group 33 BIEFRRAR — xKE

(Continued) (#&)
Deferred income tax assets BEFRBREE
Tax losses
RIEEGE
2010 2009
—EZ-TF —ERNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2009 and 2008 RIEZENFR-ZZENGF
mA—H (4,040) (1,748)
Credited to the consolidated income A#Z&EWZERTA
statement (476) (2,292)
At 31st March 2010 and 2009 R-Z-ZFR-ZZTNF
=B=+—H (4,516) (4,040)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i BB A ERE 0 AT LABDHA ¢ 18 & 4K 8
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets BEARIIEEE  URIELEMRESHER—
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred MBEEERER  AEZEHREEEREA
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The BR T LUK o SRR T
offset amounts are as follows:
2010 2009
—Z-TF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Deferred tax assets — to be EEREEE — BR
recovered after more than 12 #EiB12@A EkE
months (4,516) (4,040)
Deferred tax liabilities — to be EEFEEE — KR
recovered after more than 12 HEiB12M@EA &=
months 15,568 11,652
11,052 7,612
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B RS AR AR B

34 Cash generated from operations

(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax

to cash generated from operations

Profit/(loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

Share of losses of associated
companies (note 18)

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (note 14)

Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 15)

Amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights (note 13)

Amortisation of film rights
(note 17)

Provision for impairment of
contractual supplier relationship
(note 15)

Deficit on revaluation of buildings
(note 14)

Provision for impairment of film
rights (note 17)

Provision for impairment of
goodwill (note 15)

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables (note 25)

Provision for impairment of
amount due from a jointly
controlled entity (note 719(a))

(Reversal of)/provision for
impairment of amount due from
an associated company
(note 18)

Provision for impairment of
available-for-sale financial
assets (note 23(a))

Provision for obsolescence of
inventories
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BRATSHADER (EE)
KA
FEL = N B E5 1B
(HiaE 18)
Y% - HEBERRERBINE
(MtEE 14)
B EEBE (M 15)

FHE + h 7 4 shfE AR
S (K1aE13)
T RAEEEE (A 17)

BRHEEEERRERE
(BfzE 15)

BFEMEE (M 14)

BRI ERE
(Htaz17)
EIER R (AT 15)

BERWERERE
(BfzE25)

FEUR L B 1= HI B B SR
BB (FfaE 19(a))

FE W Bk & A B FRRUE
(BE), B (M2 18)
A SR B EERER

& (Ktat 23(a))

REFERE

34

BEXBREASE
(a) MABRAET (BR) HESX
BRARSZHIES

2010 2009
—2-2% —EENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FHT
59,839 (76,035)

— 1,570

8,383 7,723

- 4,419

555 324

32,262 53,008

- 4,610

87 —

2,555 4,507

- 22,418

- 9,514

- 443

(1,780) 14,740

- 625

487 3,237



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

34 Cash generated from operations 34 BEXEBMEIAL @)

(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before income tax (a) EEFEMAERN (Fig BAgs
to cash generated from operations (Continued) EBmRERECHIER(Z)
2010 2009
—E—-Zf —EZhEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Loss on disposal of film rights HESEMEZEE
(note 17) (Kta17) - 164
Loss on repurchase of convertible i&[E A # i3 =15 > 12 (47
notes (note 31(c)) it 31(c)) - 544
Fair value (gains)/losses on BRAFEFFABRR 2
financial assets at fair value BEEZAFEMWE),
through profit or loss &8 (12 23(b))
(note 23(b)) (21,467) 14,765
(Surplus)/deficits on revaluation of REVES (L (RER)
investment properties (note 16) B8 (a7 16) (22,504) 11,335
Fair value gain on derivative PTEMBIAZAFE
financial instrument (note 31) sk (K7L 31) (36) (13,951)
Interest income (note 8) FEWA (KtaE8) (1,405) (2,868)
Interest expense on loans and ERREXFERE
overdrafts (note 8) (H1EE8) 938 627
Interest element of finance leases FIEFHL Z K| S35
(note 8) (HEE8) 287 425
Interest accretion in respect of AT AR EHRAE N 2 F 2
convertible notes (note 8) (H1EE8) 2,210 7,362
Unwinding of discount in respect  3Eif 2 fEUR 7018 2 BLEE
of non-current receivables e (ffaE8)
(note 8) - (476)
Changes in working capital EEELSEHH (TEHFER
(excluding the effects of BrwEREERAERZ
acquisitions and exchange EREZ) :
differences on consolidation):
Inventories FE (493) (2,724)
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk HEAEWFIIE 31,918 (22,554)
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRRZ
through profit or loss MBEE (6,181) (18,840)
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEAMESTIE (11,712) (2,953)
Cash generated from operations K& FF5HE S 73,943 21,954
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34 Cash generated from operations 34 BEXEBMEIAL @)
(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FARMBFTEBDH
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
MITER b S R KAk i
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-BF C"E2EANF TB-BF "—IZINF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET F#ET FET
At 1st April 2009 and R-ZEZENFER
2008 —BENF
mA—H 16,000 - 6,700 6,092
Proceeds from bank IRITERZAE
loans I8 23,384 23,853 - =
Repayments of bank EEBTER
loans (6,808) (7,853) - =
Inception of finance AR ERL
lease (note (c)) (B1&E (c) - = - 4,912
Repayments of capital {EEFEFHL 24
element of finance o
leases - — (3,677) (4,304)
At 31st March 2010 and A=ZT—ZF R
2009 —EZThF
=HA=+—H 32,576 16,000 3,023 6,700
(c) Major non-cash transactions (c) EEFBREXH
During the year ended 31st March 2009, the Group BE-ZEZAF=A=1+—HIHTF
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect ER  AEERTNERELREE
of assets with a total capital value at the inception #4,912,000 B T2 EEFT LR E
of the lease of HK$4,912,000. RO HE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

35 Contingent liabilities 35 BHARAR
Group Company
*5%E F2F
2010 2009 2010 2009
ZB—-8F C—E2ENF ZB—BF C—ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TFRET FET TFAEIT FET

Guarantees given to banks 7 T 2|2 & f#E1T

in respect of utilised EE M ERIT
banking facilities of: fEH Z AR
Subsidiaries Ff B A 7] - — 36,700 16,000
36 Capital commitments — Group 36 BEKIE — F5KEH
At 31st March 2010, the Group had contracted RZE-ZEF=-A=+—H  AEEH
commitments but not provided for in these consolidated THETTHNERRALGE M HEHRETAE
financial statements as follows: B 2 ARIE
2010 2009
—E=-ZF —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Commitments in respect of BRETHIEE Z&IE
— property, plant and equipment — Y - WBERRE 610 =
— film production — EXBUE 310 170
— film and program licensing — B NE B RERHZE
agreements 7,952 1,577
— available-for-sale financial — A ENKERE
assets - 367
8,872 2,114
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

37 Operating lease commitments — Group 37 EEHEVRIE — xKH

(a) Operating lease commitments — Group
companies as lessee
The group leases various offices under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are within 5 years. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year FE_EERE(EBREERE
inclusive M)

During the year ended 31st March 2010, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$1,705,000 (2009: HK$1,013,000).
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(a) EEHNRE — FRELFHESR
AEA
REERE T T HBEEEImZE
HEZERAE - HBRAEFER -
RIBEF A S E BT 2 R

BIERSBENT -
2010 2009
—E—8%F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
1,073 957
2,551 3,110
3,624 4,067

BEZE_Z-ZF=A=+—-HLEE
AW AEERESHE1,705,000% T
(ZZZNF 1,013,000 J ) 5] 3L &
EHORH -



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 Operating lease commitments — Group
(Continued)

(b)

Future operating lease arrangements — Group
companies as lessor

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of investment properties, buildings and

furniture, fixtures and equipment as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year

M)

inclusive

38 Business Combinations

(a)

Acquisition of Era Movies Limited (“Era
Movies”)

In April 2008, the Company acquired 80% of the
equity interest of Era Movies from a third party at
a consideration of HK$3,200,000. Era Movies is
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of
films in Hong Kong and in Macau. It contributed
revenue of HK$23,244,000 and net profit of
HK$1,124,000 to the Group during the year ended
31st March 2009.

B RS R AR B

37 EEHVRIE — *EE (=)

(b)

F-EETEN(BEER

REBERNRE — FEELF
EHEHBEA

FEBRBEREYE - BFURK
B -#£ERIEZTUHHELCEH
HATRARIRUER 2 RAKE S 2280
T

2010 2009
—g-%% =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
4,529 11,512
6,032 9,193
10,561 20,705

38 RFXEH
(a) MMM EHRAE(ERB

: 3)

RZZBZENFMA » XAREE=
FU BB FBEZ80% B K
% 3,200,0008 7T c FREEE
ZNEEBREMRBHEERRITE
¥ RBE_ZThF=A=+—
ALEFEFER HAXEET R
23,244,000 % st Wz & 1,124,000
B IR o
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e

38 Business Combinations (Continued) 38 XS @)
(a) Acquisition of Era Movies Limited (“Era (a) WHERMEBHR QT (EMRB
Movies”) (Continued) 2| (#&E
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as B REERBE 21BN
follows: T
HK$’000
FET
Purchase consideration in cash REeEBENRE 3,200
Fair value of net assets acquired — shown as filEFEEEZ A FE — HR

below M (2,672)
Goodwill BE 528
The goodwill is attributable to the economies of HERBNENEGHAEEESE
scale expected from combining the operations of KREXEBEMELE 2 REEBEN
the Group and Era Movies. i ©
The fair value and carrying amounts of the FRRENBBEPZ2EERER
assets and liabilities of Era Movies at the date of AFEREREEMNT :
acquisition were as follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
NFE #HUr RS S IRmE (E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contractual supplier relationship & & EREEIE (f1:E 15)

(note 15) 4,000 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFRSBAE (M 33)

(note 33) (660) -
Fair value of net assets FEEZATE 3,340 =
Minority interests (20%) DHIRRELS (20%) (668) -
Net assets acquired TN FEE 2,672 =
Purchase consideration settled in & {2 BEERE

cash (8,200)
Cash outflow on acquisition WiE 2 HER (3,200)
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38 Business Combinations (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Fame Sky International Limited

(“Fame Sky”)

In October 2008, the Company acquired 52% of
the equity interest of Fame Sky from a third party
at a consideration of HK$16,800,000. Asia Pacific
Media Holding Limited (Japan), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Fame Sky, is principally engaged in
the channel supply in Japan. It contributed revenue
of HK$1,981,000 and net loss of HK$12,593,000
to the Group for the period from October 2008 to
March 2009. If the acquisition had occurred on 1st
April 2008, the Group’s revenue would have been
HK$193,540,000, loss before income tax would
have been HK$87,270,000. Details of net liabilities

acquired and goodwill are as follows:

Purchase consideration in cash

Fair value of net liabilities — shown as below

Goodwill 5]

)

The goodwill is attributable to the synergy expected

to arise after the Group’s acquisition of Fame Sky.

B RS R AR B

38 XS =)

(b)

REBENRE
FEEZAFE — JRAT

I EEFame Sky International
Limited ([ Fame Sky |)
REZZNF+A  ARF[E=
7 U B Fame Sky 2 52% R & -
X 18 % 16,800,000 7T ° Fame
Sky 2z 2 &t & A § Asia Pacific
Media Holding Limited (Japan)
FERENBAMERE - N
ENF+RAEZZNEF=AH
B HRAKME 1,981,000
78 7T W & & 12,593,000 7 7T % &5
BE-MlBER=—"ZZN\FNA
—BET AAEEZWREZED
193,540,000 7T » T ER AT S B AT
/&5 18 7% %3 87,270,000 % JT AT UK
BEEBERBEZHBNOT

HK$’000
FET

16,800
5,085

21,885

FERBRAIRAEEWE
Fame Sky & E 4 2 17 B FE -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYEREEBRAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR AR B

38 Business Combinations (Continued) 38

(b) Acquisition of Fame Sky International Limited
(“Fame Sky”) (Continued)

The fair value and carrying amounts of the assets

rREH @

(b) ¥ HEEFame Sky International
Limited ([ Fame Sky |) (4)
Fame SkyRWEBHH - EENRE

and liabilities of the Fame Sky at the date of BEATFEREKEAENT :
acquisition were as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
NFE HUL RS R (B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Property, plant and equipment M~ HEE KRB

(note 14) (MtEE 14) 757 757
Contracted supplier relationship BHEERRR

(note 15) (Kt 15) 5,029 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EMEWRFIE 1,126 1,126
Cash and cash equivalents ReRZERREER 190 190
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIE (11,357) (11,357)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFT S AE (A2 33)

(note 33) (830) -
Net liabilities acquired iR a s (5,085) (9,284)
Cash and bank balances acquired FritiIR € RIBITET 190
Cash consideration BeNRE (16,800)
Net cash outflow on acquisition W 2 &M R EE (16,610)
Note: Bt -

Net liabilities were not allocated to the minority
interest as the minority interest is not committed for
further obligation to share the net liabilities of Fame

Sky.

AR SRR ER I EAEAIE D
Fame Sky FEE2E—SEME @ &
FEBVESE T OB RER o

There were no acquisitions during the year ended 31st
March 2010.

BE-Z-ZF=-A=+t—HLEER
AR B I EAE H ML -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related party transactions — Group

Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated
financial statements, significant related party
transactions, which were carried out in the normal

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

Replication fees paid to an
associated company

Rental income received from the

HEWA

sub-letting of premises to an

associated company

The above transactions were conducted in the normal
course of business and are charged at terms mutually
agreed or in accordance with the terms of the underlying

agreements, where appropriate.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2010
(2009: Nil).

Events after the balance sheet date

On 10th May 2010, the Company completed a share
placement, whereby 722,580,000 shares, representing
12.8% of the enlarged share capital of the Group,
were allotted and issued to subscribers at a price of
HK$0.208 per share. Total gross proceeds from the

placement approximated HK$150,297,000.

N FHENT 2 ERE

39

DHENTFHE QT MWEZ

40

41

B RS R AR B

AMEALZS — %M
BRAGEMBBRREAMHERKES
o AEER-BREBBREPETZE

REMBALRIWT :
2010 2009
—e-2% —BENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT FRT
- 2,104
- 551
RSN~ RERBRAET W

BRI ZERRRNBEBIHR 2K
(EA) AR

Bz B
EETERRRBE-_T-TF=F
S+-BLEFEZRE(ZEEASF:
=) o

FHB&FER

R-ZE—ZFHRATH > X2AEK
B 4 Bt & #5 Itk - 722,580,000 % A%
BUEREELBARA 212.8%) B
RER.208B T 2 ERM B KRBT
FREBA BEZFMEBRELENS
150,297,00078 7T ©
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
EDREENEBMERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e e

42 KEEKR — EEMELF

42 Group structure — principal

subsidiaries
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st THAR=-ZBE—SF=A=+—Hz*x
March 2010: EMBRRRE :
Percentage
of equity
Nominal value interest
Place of Principal of issued share attributable
Name incorporation activities capital to the Group
FRERES
8 & R ST FERH BRITRFEE RETSL
Shares held directly:
HESARD :
Mei Ah Holdings Limited British Virgin Investment holding 50,050 ordinary 100
Islands shares of US$1
each
Mei Ah Holdings Limited KBERLHES REZR 50,050 R R EE
1EZETZEBR
Shares held indirectly:
MiERsARR :
Asia Pacific Media Japan Limited  Japan Television 100,000,000 52
operations ordinary shares
of JPY1 each
Asia Pacific Media Japan Limited ~BZ EREE 100,000,000 BR &R
HE1BEZ
EBR
Brilliant Idea Group Limited Hong Kong Production of films 10,000 ordinary 95
and tele-features shares of HK$1
each
RTEXREBRDLA BB EYRERTAEE 10,000 kB REME
1BTZEBR
Era Movies Limited Hong Kong Distribution of 100 ordinary shares 80
audio visual of HK$1 each
products
FRMEFRD A B BOIYEEM 100 RBREE
1BTZEBR
Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong Distribution of 10,000 ordinary 100
audio visual shares of HK$1
products each
ZR(BR)ERAF BB BIYEEM 10,000 R EREE
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUEE e B

42 KEEKR — EEMELF

42 Group structure — principal

subsidiaries (continued) (&
Percentage
of equity
Nominal value interest

Place of Principal of issued share attributable
Name incorporation activities capital to the Group
FREEN
1 o R S 3t FERY BRTRFEE BREBSLE
Mei Ah Development Company British Virgin Sub-licensing of 50,000 ordinary 100
Limited Islands film rights shares of US$1
each
Mei Ah Development Company RBRUHEE EREMNE 50,000 REREE
Limited 1 X2 EBR
Mei Ah Film Production Hong Kong Production of films 2 ordinary shares of 100
Company Limited and tele-features HK$1 each
ENEYHEEFRAR B EXRERTARE 2BRBREE
1BTZEBR
Mei Ah Investment Hong Kong Investment and 2 ordinary shares of 100
Company Limited property holding HK$1 each
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
EDYERERRAH B REREER 2R BREE
1BTZEER
500,000 REREE
1BTZERERE
EER
Mei Ah Trading Company Limited  British Virgin Sub-licensing of 50,000 ordinary 100
Islands film rights shares of US$1
each
Mei Ah Trading Company Limited #EBELZEHS ERE Y ME 50,000 fR &R EE
1 X2 EBR
MATV Limited Hong Kong Television 4 ordinary shares of 100
operations HK$1 each
ELRERARAT BB EREE 4R BREE
1BTZEBR
MATV (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Television 20,000 ordinary 100
operations shares of HK$1
each
ETER(GEMBRLF BB EREE 20,000 R B R EE
1BTZEBR
Xiamen Meiah Pioneer Technology People’s Republic Property holding RMB9,491,214 70

Co., Ltd.
BEMEDLHBRARAE

of china (“PRC)*
i ARHAE
([HEm])

MERH

AER#9,491,214 T
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGEENEBERAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R e

42 Group structure — principal
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

Other than MATV (Asia) Limited, Mei Ah Trading
Company Limited and Mei Ah Development
Company Limited which operate in Hong Kong and
overseas, and Asia Pacific Media Japan Limited
which operates in Japan and Xiamen Meiah Pioneer
Technology Co., Ltd. (EFIEZREHERBEERAR)
which operates in PRC, all subsidiaries principally
operate in Hong Kong.

Xiamen Meiah Pioneer Technology Co., Ltd. (&
FiZEan 2R AR A7) was newly incorporated
during the year and registered in the PRC as
a Sino-foreign equity joint venture and had a
registered capital of RMB16,000,000. The amount
of RMB9,491,214 represents the registered capital

paid up to 31st March 2010.

43 Ultimate holding company
As at 31st March 2010, the directors regard Kuo Hsing

Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, as the ultimate holding company of the

Company.
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42 KEEKR — EEMELF

(&)

it -

MREDTER (DM BRAT - Mei
Ah Trading Company Limited }
Mei Ah Development Company
Limited I REBERBIKEE -
M Asia Pacific Media Japan
Limited A B AE&E R EFIXEDE
BERBEERARRPELEIN
FEMBAREEERBLKE o

EMEZLE#RBMEERAIAAR
FRHFAMEL R PEE
MAHRIEGELE TMEX
A A K #16,000,0007T > A B
#9491 214 LEBE_T— =
F=ZHA=+—HeXffzaEmE
$o

43 WmEERAT
R-Z—ZF=RB=+—RH EFZRA
RATZBRARERATDAERBE 28
E M A& 2 A 8 Kuo Hsing Holdings

Limited °



MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBMERAR

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

financial years are as follows:

Results

Profit/(loss) attributable to

shareholders

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

FFEHFEE

AEERBEABEVBRFEZXE EEX
BEWNT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=P=1t—HLEE

2009 2008 2007 2006
—REAF  ZBRN\F ZTRLF ZFERF
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT THET TET FET
(71,529) (83,413) 21,933 20,378

As at 31st March

R=A=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006
“BBRE  CBE\E CBRLE  SBEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
474,351 576,191 444,934 361,131

(136,670)  (128,672)  (164,034)  (122,970)

2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FHEIT
E § ]
BREREERF,
(E518) 51,965
2010
—E-ZF
HK$’000
FHETT
SERAR
HERE 543,073
Fb =R (127,953)
FEE 415,120

337,681 447,519 280,900 238,161
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XODREENEBMERAT

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FTRREVEMR

Percentage

of Group

interest

Address Existing use Term of lease FREZ
o 4k R HE EizF 9] AL

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28 on 17th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Metro Centre, No. 32 Lam Hing Street T R HA
Kowloon Bay
Kowloon
NEe
hEEE
FRELAT 32 9R E /AP
1748555 ~ 15-2355 % 25-28 55 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2 on 10th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Metro Centre, No. 32 Lam Hing Street T A HA
Kowloon Bay Kowloon
FuEE
NEEE
FRELAT 32 9RO
10 1-23R %

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60 Residential Medium 100%
The Villa Horizon, Silver Stream Path Sai Kung F= AR ER
New Territories
R
(=
REEFRE
285 ¥ E R 5955 & 60 SRE L

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and Car Park Space Industrial Medium 100%
No. V18 on Basement I% FRHER
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay

Kowloon

e
SHBE 155
hEETEHL
5122355 % 24 58 TR B
R ibE V18 SRE (L
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
XDRGENEBER AT

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Address
ok

Shop 2 on Ground Floor
Po Sun Mansion Nos. 87-101
Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom
Kowloon
NEE
AR |
BHFIH87-1015%
BHAE
#h T 2 SRER

Flat 1 on Level 3, No. 2 Hua Xiao Street
Tianhe Ming Ya Court, Tianhe East Road
Tianhe District, Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China

PEARALNE
&M KA E
ROA SRR ROA A HESE
EBA 257301 E

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower
Yangcheng International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road Tianhe District, Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China

hEARLNE
BN RO & 88 B R
350 B PR S B R s
T 81£801-814 &

Portion of Section 1 of Mei Ah Centre,
28 Chun Choi Street, Tseung Kwun O
Town Lot No. 39 and extension thereto,
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon

NEKER
HE BB TH b R 39 5 I HAEHt I o
SR A28 5%

EDEEP L1 RIS

Existing use
R HE

Commercial

GES

Residential

=

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

TEREWEHR

Percentage

of Group

interest

Term of lease FEEZ

iR ) E2aot

Medium 100%
R

Long 100%
REA

Medium 100%
AR ER

Medium 100%
Fh EA
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

ERRYEREEBRA T

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ETBRREVEMR

Address
ok

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
The People’s Republic of China

HEARAFE
EFMERRES L
BB EER L
RRBNE A1 31
IRE21/E
2101-2106 E T
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Existing use
R HE

Commercial

[GES

Percentage

of Group

interest

Term of lease FEEZ
B AL
Medium 70%

PR
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